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Independent Auditors’ Report 

The Controller of the City of Philadelphia and 
Chairman and Members of the Philadelphia 
Facilities Management Corporation 
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania: 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Philadelphia Gas Works (the Company), a 
component unit of the City of Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, as of and for the years ended August 31, 2013 
and 2012, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Company’s 
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted 
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Philadelphia Gas Works as of August 31, 2013 and 2012, and the changes in its 

 

 
 

KPMG LLP 
1601 Market Street 
Philadelphia, PA 19103-2499 
 

KPMG LLP is a Delaware limited liability partnership, 
the U.S. member firm of KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. 

 



 

 2 

financial position, and its cash flows for the years then ended, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted 
accounting principles. 

Emphasis of Matter 

As discussed in note 1(t) to the financial statements, the Company has changed its method of accounting 
for certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities as deferred outflows of resources or 
deferred inflows of resources or recognize certain items that were previously reported as assets and 
liabilities as outflows of resources (expenses) or inflows of resources (revenues) due to the adoption of 
Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets 
and Liabilities (GASB 65). The Company retroactively adopted GASB 65 on September 1, 2012. Our 
opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles require that management’s discussion and analysis on 
pages 3-14 and the schedules of pension funding progress and other postemployment benefits funding 
progress on pages 59 and 60 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, 
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the GASB who considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, 
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audits of the basic financial statements. 
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures 
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

 

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 
December 23, 2013 
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The narrative overview and analysis of the financial statements of Philadelphia Gas Works (the Company or 
PGW) for the years ended August 31, 2013 and 2012 have been prepared by PGW’s management. The 
information presented here is unaudited and should be read in conjunction with additional information contained 
in PGW’s financial statements. 

Financial Highlights 

• The Fiscal Year (FY) 2013 reflected a 10.2% warmer than normal winter. The FY 2013 period was 28.1% 
colder than the prior year and firm gas sales increased by 6.4 billion cubic feet (Bcf). In addition, the 
Weather Normalization Adjustment (WNA), which was in effect from October 2012 through May 2013, 
resulted in heating customers receiving charges totaling $8.4 million as a result of the temperatures 
experienced during the period. FY 2012 reflected a 30.3% warmer than normal winter. The FY 2012 
period was 24.2% warmer than the prior year and firm gas sales decreased by 9.7 Bcf. In addition, the 
WNA, which was in effect from October 2011 through May 2012, resulted in heating customers receiving 
charges totaling $45.4 million as a result of the temperatures experienced during the period. 

• PGW achieved a collection rate of 91.9% in the current period, 96.6% in FY 2012, and 95.1% in FY 2011. 
The drop in collection rate of 4.7% between FY 2013 and FY 2012 was caused by an extended cold period 
late in the heating season during FY 2013. By the nature of PGW’s business, receipts lag behind billings, 
as a result receipts associated with the late heating season demand will continue into the next FY. The 
collection rate is calculated by dividing the total gas receipts collected in FY 2013 by the total gas billings 
that were applied to PGW customers’ accounts from September 1 through August 31. The same 
methodology was utilized in FY 2012 and FY 2011. 

• PGW continues to have various business initiatives that pertain to improving collections, productivity, and 
operational efficiencies throughout the Company. PGW, at the end of FY 2013 and FY 2012, had no tax 
exempt commercial paper outstanding and a cash balance of $100.9 million and $75.8 million, 
respectively. This reflects an overall increase of $25.1 million in PGW’s liquidity. PGW had a cash 
balance of $105.4 million at the end of FY 2011. 

• In FY 2013, the Company adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), 
Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. For further information, 
see note 1(t), New Accounting Pronouncements, of the Financial Statements. 

• Liquidity/Cash Flow – At December 17, 2013, $60.0 million was available from the commercial paper 
program. Additionally, PGW had $43.9 million available in its Capital Improvement Fund to be utilized 
for construction expenditures. These funding sources may be utilized during the fall and early winter 
period to provide liquidity until billings from the winter heating season are collected. The cash balance at 
December 17, 2013 was $71.0 million. 

• The Company’s recent debt activity is as follows: 

• On August 28, 2012, the Company accelerated payment of $20.2 million of principal for bonds issued 
under the 1998 General Ordinance with internally generated resources. The defeased bonds were for 
these respective series and amounts: Fourth Series – $3.1 million, Fifth Series – $2.9 million, Seventh 
Series – $6.1 million, Eighth Series A – $5.3 million and Ninth Series – $2.8 million. 
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• On September 28, 2011, the City issued: 

– Gas Works Revenue Bonds, Twentieth Series (1975 General Ordinance) in the amount of 
$16.2 million for the purpose of refunding the entire Sixteenth Series Bond (1975 General 
Ordinance), and paying the costs of issuing the bonds. The Twentieth Series Bonds, with fixed 
interest rates that range from 2.0% to 5.0%, have maturity dates through 2015. 

– Gas Works Revenue Bonds, Tenth Series (1998 General Ordinance) in the amount of 
$72.6 million for the purpose of refunding the entire First Series A, First Series C, Second 
Series, and Third Series Bonds (1998 General Ordinance), and paying the costs of issuing the 
bonds. The Tenth Series Bonds, with fixed interest rates that range from 3.0% to 5.0%, have 
maturity dates through 2026. 

• On September 1, 2011, the City defeased $29.5 million of the Eighth Series variable rate Bonds 
utilizing internally generated funds. As a result of this defeasance, a portion of the related interest rate 
swap agreement was terminated. The termination payment was approximately $7.0 million. 
Concurrently, the letters of credit for the Eighth Series B, C, and D Bonds were extended and the 
Series E letter of credit was replaced. The remaining Eighth Series Bonds in the amount of 
$225.5 million were then remarketed, with the remaining aggregate principal being reallocated among 
the Eighth Series B Bonds ($50.3 million), the Eighth Series C Bonds ($50.0 million), the Eighth 
Series D Bonds ($75.0 million), and Eighth Series E Bonds ($50.2 million). The related swap 
agreement was amended to reflect these new notional amounts for each of the issuances. 

• The Company’s only derivative instruments within the scope of GASB Statement No. 53, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments (GASB 53), are four interest rate swaps entered into to 
hedge the interest payments on its variable rate debt. These swaps originate from an interest rate swap used 
as a hedge of the Sixth Series Bonds. Because the hedges were effective at August 31, 2013, the favorable 
change in fair value of the swaps of $24.0 million for FY 2013 has been recorded as a decrease in the 
interest rate swap liability and the related deferred outflow of resources. The balance of the interest rate 
swap liability at August 31, 2013 is $33.4 million, and the related deferred outflow of resources balance is 
$12.0 million. The difference between the balances is due to the impact of refunding the Sixth Series 
Bonds, which the original swap previously hedged, during FY 2009, and establishing a hedging 
relationship between the portion of the original swap remaining after the refunding (divided into 
four swaps) and the refunding Eighth Series Bonds. Because the hedges were determined effective for both 
periods presented, there was no impact on the Statements of Revenues and Expenses for either year other 
than swap settlement payments. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

The discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction and overview of PGW’s basic financial 
statements. PGW’s financial statements are comprised of: 

Financial statements provide both long-term and short-term information about PGW’s overall financial 
condition, results of operations, and cash flows. 
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The notes to financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the 
data presented in PGW’s financial statements. The notes can be found immediately following the basic financial 
statements. 

The financial statements report information about PGW as a whole using accounting methods similar to those 
used by private sector business. The four statements presented are: 

The statement of revenues and expenses presents revenue and expenses and their effects on the change in equity 
during the fiscal year. These changes in equity are recorded as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the 
change occurs, regardless of when cash is received or paid. 

The balance sheet includes all of PGW’s assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as 
equity. Over time, increases or decreases in fund equity are indicators of whether PGW’s financial position is 
improving or deteriorating. 

The statement of cash flows provides relevant information about the cash receipts and cash payments of an 
enterprise during a period and the impact on PGW’s financial position. 

The statement of changes in net position provides a rollforward of the net position balance of PGW based upon 
the results from the statement of revenues and expenses. 

Condensed Statements of Revenues and Expenses

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Years ended August 31
2013 2012 2011

Total gas revenues $ 675,154   628,387   749,268   
Other revenues 18,317   16,596   17,011   

Total operating revenues 693,471   644,983   766,279   

Fuel expense 255,501   233,713   330,932   
All other operating expenses 318,510   316,625   310,708   

Total operating expenses 574,011   550,338   641,640   

Operating income 119,460   94,645   124,639   

Interest and other income 1,147   4,659   4,348   
Total interest expense (59,965)  (69,544)  (75,682)  

Excess of revenues over
expenses $ 60,642   29,760   53,305   
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Operating Revenues 

Operating revenues in FY 2013 were $693.5 million, an increase of $48.5 million or 7.5% from FY 2012. The 
increase in FY 2013 was due to increased heating demand. Operating revenues in FY 2012 were $645.0 million, 
a decrease of $121.3 million or 15.8% from FY 2011. The decrease in FY 2012 was due to decreased heating 
demand and lower natural gas commodity prices. Please see the discussion of the cost of fuel in the Operating 
Expenses section below. 

Total sales volumes, including gas transportation deliveries, in FY 2013 increased by 9.9 Bcf to 72.2 Bcf or 
15.9% from FY 2012 sales volumes of 62.3 Bcf. In FY 2012, total sales volumes, including gas transportation 
deliveries, decreased by 12.2 Bcf to 62.3 Bcf or 16.4% from FY 2011 sales volumes of 74.5 Bcf. In FY 2013, 
firm gas sales of 44.7 Bcf were 6.4 Bcf or 16.7% higher than FY 2012 firm gas sales of 38.3 Bcf, which were 9.7 
Bcf, or 20.1% lower than FY 2011. Interruptible customer sales increased by 0.7 Bcf compared to FY 2012 
which decreased by 0.8 Bcf compared to FY 2011. Gas transportation sales in FY 2013 increased by 2.1 Bcf to 
26.5 Bcf from the 24.4 Bcf level experienced in FY 2012. In FY 2012, the volume of gas transportation sales 
decreased by 0.9 Bcf to 24.4 Bcf from the 25.3 Bcf level experienced in FY 2011. 

In FY 2013, the number of customers served by PGW decreased from the previous year and was approximately 
501,000 customers. The number of customers served by PGW at the end of FY 2012 and FY 2011 was 
approximately 503,000. Commercial accounts were approximately 25,000 customers, reflecting no change from 
the previous two fiscal years. Industrial accounts were unchanged, from the previous two fiscal years at 700 
customers. The number of residential accounts in FY 2013 decreased to approximately 475,000 customers, a 
decrease of 2,000 customers from the FY 2012 and 2011 level. 

Operating Expenses 

Total operating expenses, including fuel costs, in FY 2013 were $574.0 million, an increase of $23.7 million or 
4.3% from FY 2012. The increase for FY 2013 reflects higher natural gas demand. Total operating expenses, 
including fuel costs, in FY 2012 were $550.3 million, a decrease of $91.3 million or 14.2% from FY 2011. The 
decrease for FY 2012 reflects lower natural gas demand and a decrease in the commodity price of natural gas. 

Cost of Fuel – The cost of natural gas utilized increased by $21.8 million or 9.3% to $255.5 million in FY 2013 
compared with $233.7 million in FY 2012. The average commodity price per thousand cubic feet (Mcf) 
decreased by $0.13 or $6.6 million, while the volume of gas utilized increased by 7.2 Bcf, 16.6% or 
$28.1 million. In addition, pipeline supplier refunds in FY 2013 increased by $0.1 million while demand charges 
increased by $0.4 million, compared to FY 2012. 

The cost of natural gas utilized decreased by $97.2 million or 29.4% to $233.7 million in FY 2012 compared 
with $330.9 million in FY 2011. The average commodity price per Mcf decreased by $0.80 or $34.9 million, 
while the volume of gas utilized decreased by 12.0 Bcf, 21.8% or $56.5 million. In addition, pipeline supplier 
refunds in FY 2011 decreased by $0.1 million while demand charges decreased by $5.9 million, compared to 
FY 2011. 

Variations in the cost of purchased gas are passed through to customers under the gas cost rate (GCR) provision 
of PGW’s rate schedules. Over–recoveries or under–recoveries of purchased gas costs are subtracted from or 
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added to gas revenues and are included in other current assets or other current liabilities, thereby eliminating the 
effect that recovery of gas costs would otherwise have on net income. 

The average natural gas commodity prices for utilized gas for FY 2013, FY 2012, and FY 2011 were $3.78, 
$3.91, and $4.71 per Mcf, respectively. 

Other Operating Expenses – Expenditures for street operations, infrastructure improvements, and plant 
operations in FY 2013 were $82.8 million, a $5.5 million or 7.1% increase from the FY 2012 total of 
$77.3 million. The increase in FY 2013 was caused by higher labor costs for main replacement and higher costs 
associated with running the liquefied natural gas plants. The FY 2012 total of $77.3 million was $0.7 million 
lower than the FY 2011 total of $78.0 million as a result of lower costs associated with maintenance of mains and 
gas operations. 

Additionally, expenses of $107.4 million related to, collection and account management, customer services, 
marketing, and the administrative area decreased by $3.9 million or 3.5% in FY 2013 primarily due to lower 
healthcare expenses and an increase in the credit to operating expenses associated with capital spending. This 
category increased by $5.7 million or 5.4% in FY 2012 compared to FY 2011 primarily due to costs related to the 
implementation of the demand side management program and higher costs associated with Workers’ 
Compensation expenses. 

Pension costs decreased in FY 2013 due to a slight decrease in the factor utilized as a percentage of covered 
payroll to calculate pension expense. Additionally, the covered payroll reflected a modest decrease of 
$0.3 million from the FY 2012 level of $106.3 million. The new payroll factor is based on a new actuarial study 
applicable to FY 2013. Pension costs decreased by $0.4 million to $23.6 million in FY 2013 as compared to 
FY 2012. Pension costs increased $1.4 million to $24.0 million in FY 2012 as compared to FY 2011. 

OPEB costs decreased $3.6 million to $16.5 million in FY 2013 when compared to FY 2012. OPEB costs 
decreased $2.4 million to $20.1 million in FY 2012 compared to $22.5 million in FY 2011. OPEB costs 
decreased in both fiscal years due to higher fund balances in the OPEB Trust. 

The net OPEB obligation was $109.1 million for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2013, a $2.0 million decrease 
from the $111.1 million obligation at August 31, 2012. This was a $1.7 million increase over the net OPEB 
obligation of $109.4 million at August 31, 2011. 

Provision for Uncollectible Accounts – The provision for uncollectible accounts in FY 2013 totaled 
$40.0 million, an increase of $3.3 million or 9.0% higher than FY 2012. The increase in provision for 
uncollectible accounts is mainly due to higher accounts receivable balances in FY 2013. The provision for 
uncollectible accounts in FY 2012 totaled $36.7 million, an increase of $0.7 million or 1.9% higher than 
FY 2011. The accumulated provision for uncollectible accounts at August 31, 2013 reflects a balance of 
$105.6 million, compared to the $97.8 million balance in FY 2012 and $99.9 million in FY 2011. PGW is 
committed to continuing its collection efforts in an attempt to reduce outstanding delinquent account balances 
and to provide assistance to those customers who qualify for low-income grants and payment programs to help 
those customers maintain their gas service. 
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Depreciation Expense – Depreciation expense increased by $0.9 million in FY 2013 compared with FY 2012. 
Depreciation expense increased by $1.3 million in FY 2012 compared with FY 2011. The effective composite 
depreciation rates for FY 2013, FY 2012, and FY 2011 were 2.2%, 2.3%, and 2.5%, respectively. Cost of 
removal is charged to expense as incurred. 

Interest and Other Income – Interest and other income in FY 2013 was $3.6 million lower than FY 2012, 
primarily due to the termination of the Guaranteed Investment Contract related to the 1998 General Ordinance 
bonds. Interest and other income in FY 2012 was $0.4 million higher than FY 2011 due to an increase in capacity 
release revenue. 

Interest Expense –Total interest expense was $60.0 million in FY 2013 a decrease of $9.5 million or 13.7% when 
compared with FY 2012. Interest expense was lower in FY 2013 primarily due to a swap termination payment 
made in FY 2012. Total interest expense was $69.5 million in FY 2012 a decrease of $6.2 million or 8.2% when 
compared with FY 2011. In FY 2012, interest on long-term debt was lower due to the defeasance of 
$29.5 million of the Eighth Series B, C, D, and E Bonds and the refunding of $93.6 million of fixed rate bonds at 
lower interest rates. Other interest costs decreased in FY 2013 by $6.1 million or 36.3% due to the swap 
termination payments made in FY 2012. Other interest costs decreased by $2.1 million or 11.1% in FY 2012 
compared with FY 2011 due to the additional number of years over which the cost of the refunding will be 
amortized. 
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Excess of Revenues over Expenses – In FY 2013, the Company’s excess of revenues over expenses was 
$60.6 million, an increase of $30.8 million from FY 2012. The Company had an excess of revenues over 
expenses of $29.8 million in FY 2012, a decrease of $23.5 million from FY 2011. 

Condensed Balance Sheets

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Years ended August 31
Assets 2013 2012 2011

Utility plant, net $ 1,154,987    1,125,650    1,111,078   
Restricted investment funds 155,155    199,969    236,966   

Current assets:
Accounts receivable (net of accumulated

provision for uncollectible accounts
of $105,577, $97,758, and $99,932
for 2013, 2012, and 2011, respectively) 97,749    81,997    98,925   

Other current assets and deferred
debits, cash and cash equivalents, gas
inventories, materials, and supplies 197,363    183,851    226,902   

Total current assets 295,112    265,848    325,827   

Unamortized bond insurance costs 15,736    17,417    19,167   
Other assets 33,097    30,996    36,058   

Total non-current assets 48,833    48,413    55,225   

Total assets 1,654,087    1,639,880    1,729,096   

Deferred outflows of resources

Accumulated fair value of hedging derivatives 12,059    34,712    25,360   

Unamortized losses on reacquired debt 44,868    53,241    62,039   

Total assets and deferred outflows
of resources $ 1,711,014    1,727,833    1,816,495   
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Condensed Balance Sheets

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Years ended August 31
Net Position and Liabilities 2013 2012 2011

Net position $ 358,587    315,945    309,740   
Total long-term debt 1,033,976    1,086,502    1,166,992   

Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt 52,406    30,545    50,549   
Other current liabilities 88,614    88,396    91,336   

Total current liabilities 141,020    118,941    141,885   

Other liabilities 177,431    206,445    197,878   
Total net position and liabilities $ 1,711,014    1,727,833    1,816,495   

 

Assets 

Utility Plant – Utility plant, net of depreciation, totaled $1,155.0 million in FY 2013, an increase of $29.3 million 
or 2.6% compared with the FY 2012 balance of $1,125.7 million. The FY 2012 balance increased by 
$14.6 million or 1.3% compared with the FY 2011 balance of $1,111.1 million. Capital expenditures for 
construction of distribution facilities, purchase of equipment, information technology enhancements, and other 
general improvements were $70.4 million in FY 2013 compared to $54.7 million in FY 2012 and $58.8 million 
in FY 2011. PGW funded capital expenditures through drawdowns from the Capital Improvement Fund in the 
amounts of $44.8 million, $34.0 million, and $48.1 million in FY 2013, FY 2012, and FY 2011, respectively. 
The major capital expenditures are associated with PGW’s gas supply infrastructure, namely, gas mains, and 
customer service lines, including capital expenditures for the Long Term Infrastructure Improvement Plan for 
which PGW will request recovery through a Distribution System Improvement Charge (DSIC). For additional 
information, see note 1(g) Utility Plant of the Financial Statements. 

Restricted Investment Funds – Restricted investment funds decreased by $44.8 million in FY 2013 primarily due 
to proceeds being drawn from the Capital Improvement Fund to fund capital expenditures in the amount of 
$44.8 million. A drawdown from the Sinking Fund Reserve in FY 2012 in the amount of $6.7 million was 
utilized for payment of debt service of which $2.0 million was principal and $4.7 million was interest income. 
Interest income, to the extent not drawn, is reflected as an increase of $0.4 million in FY 2013, $0.6 million in 
FY 2012, and $1.2 million in FY 2011. A drawdown of the accrued interest in the Capital Improvement Fund in 
the amount of $9.4 million was utilized for working capital purposes in FY 2011. Effective September 1, 2011, 
PGW self-insured the healthcare for active employees and retirees under the age of 65. Retirees over the age of 
65 are insured on an experience rated basis. Prior to September 1, 2011, the Company had entered into several 
one-year contracts to provide healthcare for both active and retired employees that were experience rated, and 
premiums were adjusted annually. Per the terms of the self-insured program PGW established a health insurance 
escrow fund that at August 31, 2013 was funded in the amount of $3.2 million. 
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Accounts Receivable – In FY 2013, accounts receivable (net) of $97.7 million increased by $15.7 million, or 
19.1%, from FY 2012 due to higher gas billings during FY 2013 which resulted from colder winter heating 
conditions. In FY 2012 accounts receivable (net) of $82.0 million decreased by $16.9 million, or 17.1%, from 
FY 2011 due to lower gas billings during FY 2012 as compared to FY 2011. The accumulated provision for 
uncollectible accounts, totaling $105.6 million increased by $7.8 million in FY 2013 and totaled $97.8 million in 
FY 2012 and $99.9 million in FY 2011. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Gas Inventories, Materials and Supplies and, Other Current Assets – In FY 2013, 
cash and cash equivalents totaled $100.9 million, an increase of $25.1 million from the FY 2012 total of 
$75.8 million and totaled $105.4 million in FY 2011. In FY 2013 gas inventories, materials and supplies totaled 
$80.2 million, a decrease of $0.9 million from the FY 2012 total of $81.1 million. Gas inventories, materials and 
supplies totaled $86.0 million in FY 2011. In FY 2013, gas storage decreased by $2.4 million or 3.3% when 
compared to FY 2012. The decrease in gas inventory reflects a decrease in the volume of gas in storage. In FY 
2012, gas storage decreased by $5.5 million or 7.0% compared to FY 2011. The decrease in gas inventory for FY 
2012 reflects a decrease in the gas cost per Mcf. Other current assets totaled $16.2 million in FY 2013, a decrease 
of $10.7 million from FY 2012, primarily as a result of a decrease in the GCR. This was partially offset by an 
increase in the pension receivable from the City. In FY 2012 other current assets totaled $26.9 million, a decrease 
of $8.6 million from FY 2011 primarily as a result of a decrease in the pension receivable from the City of 
Philadelphia. This was partially offset by a $4.7 million increase in the GCR. 

Other Assets and Deferred Outflow of Resources – In FY 2013, other assets including unamortized bond 
insurance costs, regulatory assets for unamortized loss on reacquired debt and environmental expenses totaled 
$105.8 million, a decrease of $30.6 million from FY 2012. This decrease was primarily due to the change in 
valuation of the swap agreement. In FY 2011, other assets, including unamortized bond issuance costs, 
unamortized loss on reacquired debt, and a regulatory asset for environmental expenses totaled $142.6 million. 

Liabilities 

Long-Term Debt – Long-term debt, including the current portion and unamortized discount and premium, totaled 
$1,086.4 million in FY 2013, $30.6 million less than the previous year primarily as a result of normal debt 
principal payments. This represents 75.2% of total capitalization in FY 2013. Long-term debt, including the 
current portion and unamortized discount and premium, totaled $1,117.0 million in FY 2012, $100.5 million less 
than the previous year primarily as a result of normal debt principal payments and a defeasance of principal in 
the amount of $49.7 million. Long-term debt, including the current portion and unamortized discount and 
premium, totaled $1,217.5 million in FY 2011. Long-term debt represented 77.7% of total capitalization in FY 
2012 and 79.7% of total capitalization in FY 2011. For additional information, see note 8, Long-Term Debt and 
Other Liabilities of the Financial Statements. 

Debt Service Coverage Ratio and Ratings – PGW has a mandatory debt service coverage ratio of 1.50 times debt 
service on both the 1975 and 1998 Ordinance Bonds. In FY 2013, the debt service coverage was at 5.58 times 
debt service on the outstanding 1975 Ordinance Bonds and at 2.90 times debt service on the Senior 1998 
Ordinance Bonds compared to debt service coverage ratios of 4.75 and 1.75 times, respectively, in FY 2011, and 
6.06 and 2.15 times, respectively, in FY 2011. PGW’s current bond ratings are “Baa2” from Moody’s Investors 
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Service (Moody’s), “BBB+” from Standard & Poor’s Ratings Service (S&P), and “BBB” from Fitch Ratings 
(Fitch). 

Short-Term Debt – Due to the highly seasonal nature of PGW’s business, short-term debt is utilized to meet 
working capital requirements. PGW, pursuant to the provisions of the City of Philadelphia Note Ordinance, may 
sell short-term notes in a principal amount, which together with interest, may not exceed $150.0 million 
outstanding at any time. These notes are supported by two irrevocable letters of credit and a security interest in 
PGW’s revenues. The letters of credit supporting PGW’s commercial paper program fixed the maximum level of 
outstanding notes plus interest at $60.0 million in FY 2013, $60.0 million in FY 2012 and $90.0 million in 
FY 2011. 

In August 2013, PGW renewed two of the letters of credit supporting the commercial paper program at 
$30.0 million each for a total of $60.0 million. 

In September 2011, PGW requested that each of the three banks reduce the stated amounts of their respective 
letters of credit for the commercial paper Series F-1, F-2, and F-3 from $30.0 million to $20.0 million. As a result 
of the reduction of each of the letters of credit, PGW’s commercial paper program was reduced from 
$90.0 million to $60.0 million. There were no notes outstanding at August 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011. The 
Company has not utilized commercial paper for working capital since May 2009. 

Other Current Liabilities – In FY 2013, other current liabilities totaled $9.1 million, a decrease of $1.2 million 
from FY 2012, mainly due to the decrease in the environmental remediation liability, which was partially offset 
by an increase in the injuries and damages reserve. In FY 2012, the total was $10.3 million, a decrease of 
$1.8 million from FY 2011. 

Accounts Payable – In FY 2013, accounts payable totaled $59.4 million, an increase of $2.3 million or 4.0% 
compared with FY 2012 primarily due to an increase in natural gas payables of $3.1 million, which was partially 
offset by a decrease in trade payables of $0.8 million. In FY 2012, accounts payable totaled $57.1 million, an 
increase of $1.2 million or 2.1% compared with FY 2011 primarily due to an increase in trade payables of 
$9.0 million, which was partially offset by a decrease of natural gas payables of $7.7 million. 

Other Liabilities – In FY 2013, other liabilities totaling $177.4 million decreased $29.0 million compared to 
FY 2012. The decrease in FY 2013 is primarily due to the favorable change in the value of the swap. In FY 2012, 
other liabilities totaling $206.4 million increased $8.5 million compared to FY 2011. The increase in FY 2012 is 
primarily due to the effect of recording an increase in the liability for the swap valuation in the amount of 
$5.7 million, and an increase in the environmental liability in the amount of $4.9 million. 

Other Financial Factors 

The Mayor announced that the City would explore the possibility of selling PGW. Subsequent to this 
announcement, the City solicited and engaged various professional advisors to assist the City through a potential 
sale process. As of December 23, 2013, the City is in the process of evaluating potential buyers and terms of sale, 
but no final decision regarding sale has been made. 
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Recent Rate Filings 

On December 18, 2009, PGW submitted a base rate filing with the PUC (1) to maintain the $60.0 million base 
rate increase that the PUC granted in 2008; and (2) to fund PGW’s OPEB liability in the amount of 
$42.5 million. PGW also moved to consolidate the Company’s Demand Side Management Program, an energy 
efficiency and conservation plan, into the base rate filing. On May 19, 2010, PGW, along with all active parties 
to the proceeding, submitted a Petition for Proposed Settlement of the proceeding (the Settlement) and the PUC 
approved the Settlement on July 29, 2010. Under the Settlement, PGW will be permitted to maintain virtually all 
of the extraordinary base rate relief, will receive an incremental rate increase of $16.0 million annually, and will 
be required to fund $18.5 million of the OPEB liability in each of the years 2011 through 2015. The Settlement 
also permitted the implementation of the Demand Side Management Program. 

Defeasance and Remarketing of Debt 

On August 28, 2012, the Company defeased $20.2 million of principal for bonds issued under the 1998 General 
Ordinance with internally generated resources. The defeased bonds were for these respective series and amounts: 
Fourth Series – $3.1 million, Fifth Series – $2.9 million, Seventh Series – $6.1 million, Eighth Series A – 
$5.3 million and Ninth Series – $2.8 million. 

On September 1, 2011, the City defeased $29.5 million of the Eighth Series variable rate Bonds utilizing 
internally generated funds. As a result of this defeasance, a portion of the related interest rate swap agreement 
was terminated. The termination payment was approximately $7.0 million. Concurrently, the letters of credit for 
the Eighth Series B, C, and D Bonds were extended and the Series E letter of credit was replaced. The remaining 
Eighth Series Bonds in the amount of $225.5 million were then remarketed, with the remaining aggregate 
principal being reallocated among the Eighth Series B Bonds ($50.3 million), the Eighth Series C Bonds 
($50.0 million), the Eighth Series D Bonds ($75.0 million), and Eighth Series E Bonds ($50.2 million). The 
related swap agreement was amended to reflect these new notional amounts for each of the issuances. 

Refunding of Bonds 

On September 28, 2011, the City issued Gas Works Revenue Bonds, Twentieth Series (1975 General Ordinance) 
in the amount of $16.2 million for the purpose of refunding the entire Sixteenth Series Bond (1975 General 
Ordinance), and paying the costs of issuing the bonds. The Twentieth Series Bonds, with fixed interest rates that 
range from 2.0% to 5.0%, have maturity dates through 2015. 

On September 28, 2011, the City issued Gas Works Revenue Bonds, Tenth Series (1998 General Ordinance) in 
the amount of $72.6 million for the purpose of refunding the entire First Series A, First Series C, Second Series, 
and Third Series Bonds (1998 General Ordinance), and paying the costs of issuing the bonds. The Tenth Series 
Bonds, with fixed interest rates that range from 3.0% to 5.0%, have maturity dates through 2026. 
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Contacting the Company’s Financial Management 

This financial report is designed to provide the citizens of Philadelphia, customers, investors, and creditors with a 
general overview of PGW’s finances and to demonstrate PGW’s accountability for the money it receives. If you 
have questions pertaining to this report or need additional financial information, please contact Philadelphia Gas 
Works, 800 W. Montgomery Avenue, Philadelphia, PA 19122 or on the Web at www.pgworks.com. 
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Balance Sheets

August 31, 2013 and 2012

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Assets 2013 2012

Utility plant, at original cost:
In service $ 1,951,546    1,894,129   
Under construction 44,409    53,851   

Total 1,995,955    1,947,980   

Less accumulated depreciation 840,968    822,330   

Utility plant, net 1,154,987    1,125,650   

Restricted investment funds:
Sinking fund, revenue bonds 105,280    105,312   
Capital improvement fund 44,055    88,838   
Workers’ compensation escrow fund 2,597    2,597   
Health insurance escrow fund 3,223    3,222   

Total restricted investment funds 155,155    199,969   

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 100,933    75,826   
Accounts receivable (net of provision for uncollectible accounts

of $105,577 and $97,757 for 2013 and 2012, respectively) 97,749    81,997   
Gas inventories, materials, and supplies 80,234    81,086   
Other current assets 16,196    26,939   

Total current assets 295,112    265,848   

Unamortized bond insurance costs 15,736    17,417   
Other assets 33,097    30,996   

Total noncurrent assets 48,833    48,413   

Total assets 1,654,087    1,639,880   

Deferred outflows of resources

Accumulated fair value of hedging derivatives 12,059    34,712   
Unamortized losses on reacquired debt 44,868    53,241   

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources $ 1,711,014    1,727,833   
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Balance Sheets

August 31, 2013 and 2012

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

Liabilities 2013 2012

Long-term debt:
Revenue bonds $ 1,033,976    1,086,502   

Current liabilities:
Current portion of revenue bonds 52,406    30,545   
Accounts payable 59,379    57,127   
Customer deposits 2,305    2,449   
Other current liabilities 9,107    10,265   
Accrued accounts:

Interest, taxes, and wages 14,823    15,555   
Distribution to the City 3,000    3,000   

Total current liabilities 141,020    118,941   

Other liabilities 177,431    206,445   

Total liabilities 1,352,427    1,411,888   

Net position:
Excess of net investment in capital assets 112,660    97,442   
Restricted (debt service) 111,100    111,131   
Unrestricted 134,827    107,372   

Total net position 358,587    315,945   
Total liabilities and net position $ 1,711,014    1,727,833   

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Statements of Revenues and Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Years ended August 31, 2013 and 2012

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

2013 2012

Operating revenues:
Gas revenues:

Nonheating $ 35,262    37,054   
Gas transport service 37,078    29,324   
Heating 602,814    562,009   

Total gas revenues 675,154    628,387   

Appliance and other revenues 8,333    8,240   
Other operating revenues 9,984    8,356   

Total operating revenues 693,471    644,983   

Operating expenses:
Natural gas 255,501    233,713   
Gas processing 17,592    15,640   
Field services 34,926    33,883   
Distribution 30,259    27,750   
Collection and account management 11,297    11,491   
Provision for uncollectible accounts 39,971    36,702   
Customer services 11,102    11,946   
Marketing 6,789    6,664   
Administrative and general 78,206    81,161   
Pensions 23,614    23,972   
Other postemployment benefits 16,492    20,119   
Taxes 7,220    7,122   

Total operating expenses before depreciation 532,969    510,163   

Depreciation 45,912    45,045   
Less depreciation expense included in operating expenses above 4,870    4,870   

Total depreciation 41,042    40,175   

Total operating expenses 574,011    550,338   

Operating income 119,460    94,645   

Interest and other income 1,147    4,659   

Income before interest expense 120,607    99,304   

Interest expense:
Long-term debt 49,655    53,012   
Other 10,740    16,824   
Allowance for funds used during construction (430)   (292)  

Total interest expense 59,965    69,544   

Excess of revenues over expenses 60,642    29,760   

Net position, beginning of year 315,945    304,185   
Distribution to the City of Philadelphia (18,000)   (18,000)  
Net position, end of year $ 358,587    315,945   

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended August 31, 2013 and 2012

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

2013 2012

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers $ 657,900    633,500   
Payments to suppliers (406,932)   (369,955)  
Payments to employees (109,260)   (105,681)  
Claims paid (3,307)   (3,320)  
Other receipts 9,700    9,000   

Net cash provided by operating activities 148,101    163,544   

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Interest and fees (2,084)   (185)  
Distribution to the City of Philadelphia (18,000)   (18,000)  

Net cash used in noncapital financing activities (20,084)   (18,185)  

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Redemption of long-term debt —     (93,580)  
Proceeds from long-term debt issued —     94,616   
Long-term debt issuance costs —     (1,523)  
Purchases of capital assets (70,380)   (54,746)  
Principal paid on long-term debt (27,720)   (97,608)  
Interest paid on long-term debt (50,111)   (63,386)  
Drawdowns on capital improvement fund 44,783    33,494   
Interest income on capital improvement fund 132    290   
Interest income on sinking fund (44)   332   
Sinking fund withdrawals or (deposits) —     6,900   
Other investment income 430    292   

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (102,910)   (174,919)  

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 25,107    (29,560)  

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 75,826    105,386   
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year $ 100,933    75,826   

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Operating income $ 119,460    94,645   
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by

operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization expense 41,042    42,561   
Provision for uncollectible accounts 39,971    36,702   
Change in assets and liabilities:

Receivables, net (55,723)   (19,774)  
Gas inventories, materials, and supplies 852    4,907   
Other current assets 10,744    8,584   
Other assets 20,552    (9,708)  
Accounts payable 2,253    1,234   
Customer deposits (144)   (420)  
Other current liabilities (1,159)   (1,833)  
Accrued accounts (732)   (1,921)  
Other liabilities (29,015)   8,567   

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 148,101    163,544   

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The accounting methods employed by the Philadelphia Gas Works (the Company or PGW) are in 
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (U.S. GAAP) and are in conformity with 
City of Philadelphia (the City) reporting requirements. 

As described in note 2, the Company is a component unit of the City, and consequently follows accounting 
principles promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) as they apply to 
proprietary fund-type activities. Under the Regulated Operations guidance within GASB Statement No. 62, 
Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 
FASB and AICPA Pronouncements (GASB 62), assets or liabilities may be created by certain actions of 
regulatory bodies. 

The principal accounting policies within this framework are described as follows: 

(a) Regulation 

Prior to July 1, 2000, the Company was under the regulatory jurisdiction of the Philadelphia Gas 
Commission (PGC). The PGC had the authority to set the Company’s rates and tariffs. The PGC also 
approved the Company’s annual Operating Budget and reviewed the Company’s Capital Budget 
prior to approval by the City Council of the City (City Council). 

Effective July 1, 2000, and pursuant to the passage of the Pennsylvania Natural Gas Choice and 
Competition Act (the Act), the Company came under the regulatory jurisdiction of the Pennsylvania 
Public Utility Commission (PUC). Under the PUC’s jurisdiction, the Company filed a restructuring 
plan on July 1, 2002, which among other things, provided for an unbundled tariff permitting 
customer choice of the commodity supplier by September 1, 2003. Under the Act, the PUC is 
required to follow the “same ratemaking methodology and requirements” that were previously 
applicable to the PGC when determining the Company’s revenue requirements and approving overall 
rates and charges. The PGC continues to approve the Company’s Operating Budget and review its 
Capital Budget. The Company’s Capital Budget must be approved by City Council. 

The Company, as of September 1, 2003, is operating under its Restructuring Compliance Tariff. The 
Restructuring Compliance Tariff Rates are designed to maintain revenue neutrality and the Tariff 
Rules and Regulations are designed to comport with the Pennsylvania Public Utility Code. 

(b) Operating Budget 

On May 24, 2013, PGW filed a proposed FY 2014 Operating Budget. The PGC conducted informal 
discovery (ID) sessions beginning on June 7, 2013. Additional ID meetings took place on June 18, 
June 26, and June 27. On July 16, 2013, a public hearing was convened. On August 15, 2013, a 
recommended decision was rendered which recommended PGW to file a Compliance Budget within 
ten (10) business days of the meeting at which the PGC takes final action on the Operating Budget. 
At the PGC meeting held September 17, 2013 the PGC approved, with adjustments, PGW’s FY 2014 
Operating Budget. PGW provided to the PGC on September 27, 2013 the FY 2014 Compliance 
Budget. 
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On May 24, 2012, PGW filed a proposed FY 2013 Operating Budget. After appropriate discovery 
and hearings the PGC approved the FY 2013 Operating Budget on January 16, 2013. 

On June 15, 2011, PGW filed a proposed FY 2012 Operating Budget. After appropriate discovery 
and hearings the PGC approved the FY 2012 Operating Budget on October 11, 2011. 

(c) Capital Budget 

On January 2, 2013 PGW filed with the PGC its proposed FY 2014 Capital Budget in the amount of 
$110.5 million. The PGC’s review culminated in deliberations taken at a public meeting held on 
April 15, 2013 whereby the PGC endorsed a proposed FY 2014 Capital Budget in an amount not to 
exceed $102.5 million. The endorsed budget was approved by City Council on June 6, 2013. The 
ordinance was signed by the Mayor on June 17, 2013. 

Subsequent to the City Council’s approval, on June 11, 2013 the PGC endorsed a FY 2014 Capital 
Budget amendment in the amount of $102.9 million, an increase of $0.4 million to support the 
purchase of 24 CNG sedans and a CNG Refueling Station. The endorsed amended FY 2014 Capital 
Budget was approved by City Council on October 17, 2013. The Mayor signed the ordinance on 
October 30, 2013. 

On January 3, 2012, PGW filed with the PGC a proposed FY 2013 Capital Budget of $93.3 million. 
At a public meeting held on April 19, 2012, the PGC endorsed a proposed FY 2013 Capital Budget 
in the amount of $90.9 million. City Council approved PGW’s FY 2013 Capital Budget on June 21, 
2012. The Mayor signed the ordinance on June 27, 2012. 

On September 30, 2011, PGW submitted a request to amend the FY 2012 Capital Budget by 
$1.9 million to replace PGW’s Mobile Radio System. At a public meeting on February 7, 2012, the 
PGC endorsed a proposed amendment to the FY 2012 Capital Budget that would increase the budget 
by $1.7 million to $82.5 million. City Council passed the amendment on March 22, 2012. The 
ordinance was signed by the Mayor on April 10, 2012. 

On January 4, 2011, PGW filed a proposed FY 2012 Capital Budget in the amount of $80.9 million. 
On April 27, 2011, the PGC, after review and evaluation, approved a recommendation to City 
Council for a budget of $80.8 million. City Council approved the FY 2012 Capital Budget on June 2, 
2011. The Mayor signed the ordinance on June 15, 2011. 

(d) Base Rates 

On December 18, 2009, PGW submitted a base rate filing with the PUC (1) to maintain the 
$60.0 million base rate increase that the PUC granted in 2008 and (2) to fund PGW’s Other 
Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) liability in the amount of $42.5 million. PGW also moved to 
consolidate the Company’s Demand Side Management Program, an energy efficiency and 
conservation plan, into the base rate filing. On May 19, 2010, PGW, along with all active parties to 
the proceeding, submitted a Petition for Proposed Settlement of the proceeding (the Settlement) and 
the PUC approved the Settlement on July 29, 2010. Under the Settlement, PGW will be permitted to 
maintain virtually all of the extraordinary base rate relief, will receive an incremental rate increase of 
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$16.0 million annually, and will be required to fund $18.5 million of the OPEB liability in each of 
the years 2011 through 2015. The new rates were effective September 1, 2010. The Settlement also 
permitted the implementation of the Demand Side Management Program. 

(e) Weather Normalization Adjustment Clause 

The Weather Normalization Adjustment Clause (WNA) was approved by PUC Order dated 
August 8, 2002. The purpose of the WNA is to neutralize the impact of weather on the Company’s 
revenues. This allows the Company to achieve the recovery of appropriate costs as authorized by the 
PUC. The WNA results in neither a rate increase nor a rate decrease, but acts as a billing adjustment. 
The main benefits of the WNA are the stabilization of cash flow and the reduction of the need for 
short-term borrowing from year to year. The WNA is applied to customer invoices rendered during 
the period of October 1st through May 31st of each year for each billing cycle. The adjustments for 
the years ended August 31, 2013 and 2012 were an increase in billings of $8.4 million and 
$45.4 million, respectively. 

(f) Gas Cost Rate 

The Company’s single greatest operating expense is the cost of natural gas. The rate charged to the 
Company’s customers to recover these costs is called the Gas Cost Rate (GCR). The GCR reflects 
the increases or decreases in natural gas costs and other costs. This GCR mechanism provides the 
flexibility to rapidly reflect current conditions without the time delay inherent in full base rate 
alteration. The intent is to achieve an annual balance between the costs incurred for fuel and their 
pass through to customers. 
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At the end of the fiscal year, costs recovered through the GCR and surcharges adjustment are 
compared to the actual cost of fuel and other specific costs. Customers are then credited or charged 
for the over–recovery or under–recovery of costs. The GCR and surcharges charge/credit may be 
updated quarterly or in the subsequent fiscal year to reflect the under–recovery or over–recovery. 
Changes in the GCR impact the reported amounts of gas revenues but do not affect operating income 
or net income because they are passed through to the customer without markup. At August 31, 2013 
approximately $8.8 million was recorded in other current assets for the GCR and surcharges under–
recovery. At August 31, 2012, approximately $22.0 million was recorded in other current assets for 
the GCR under–recovery. 

GCR effective dates and rates
(Amounts in U.S. dollars)

GCR rate
Effective date per Mcf* Change

September 1, 2013 $ 5.4259    (0.6450)  
June 1, 2013 6.0709    (0.3282)  
March 1, 2013 6.3991    0.6668   
December 1, 2012 5.7323    0.5076   
September 1, 2012 5.2247    0.5118   
June 1, 2012   4.7129    (0.2654)  
March 1, 2012 4.9783    (1.1487)  
December 1, 2011 6.1270    0.0676   
September 1, 2011 6.0594    (0.0336)  

* Mcf – thousand cubic feet
 

(g) Utility Plant 

Utility plant is stated at original cost. The cost of additions, replacements, and betterments of units of 
property is capitalized and included in the utility plant accounts. The cost of property sold or retired 
is removed from the utility plant accounts and charged to accumulated depreciation. Normal repairs, 
maintenance, the cost of minor property items, and expenses associated with retirements are charged 
to operating expenses as incurred. 
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In a previous rate order, the PGC disallowed the accrual of the net negative salvage component in 
depreciation. Cost of removal in the amounts of $2.9 million and $2.5 million was charged to 
expense as incurred in FY 2013 and FY 2012, respectively, and is included in depreciation expense 
in the statements of revenues and expenses. Depreciation is calculated on an asset-by-asset basis on 
the estimated useful lives of plant and equipment on a straight-line method. The composite rate for 
FY 2013 and FY 2012 was 2.2% and 2.3%, respectively. The composite rates are supported by a 
depreciation study of utility plant as of August 2009. The effective composite depreciation rates, as a 
percentage of cost, for FY 2013 were as follows: 

Production plant 2.25%
Transmission, distribution, and storage 2.05
General plant 3.20

 

The next depreciation study is scheduled to be completed in FY 2014. 

Allowance for funds used during construction (AFUDC) is an estimate of the cost of funds used for 
construction purposes. The AFUDC, as calculated on borrowed funds, reduces interest expense. The 
AFUDC rate applied to construction work in progress was 5.16% and 5.32% in FY 2013 and 
FY 2012, respectively. 

The following is a summary of utility plant activity for the fiscal years ended August 31, 2013 and 
2012 (thousands of U.S. dollars): 

August 31, 2013
Beginning Additions Retirements Ending

balance and transfers and transfers balance

Land $ 5,595   — —   5,595  
Distribution and collection

systems 1,435,353   67,419 (21,554) 1,481,218  
Buildings and equipment 453,181   14,438 (2,886) 464,733  

Total utility plant,
at historical cost 1,894,129   81,857 (24,440) 1,951,546  

Under construction 53,851   72,416 (81,858) 44,409  
Less accumulated

depreciation for:
Distribution and

collection systems (691,151) (31,018)* 20,548   (701,621) 
Buildings and equipment (131,179) (12,019)* 3,851   (139,347) 

Utility plant, net $ 1,125,650   111,236 (81,899) 1,154,987  
 

* Cost of removal of approximately $2.9 million was charged to expense as incurred in FY 2013 
and is not included in accumulated depreciation. 
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August 31, 2012
Beginning Additions Retirements Ending

balance and transfers and transfers balance

Land $ 5,595   — —   5,595  
Distribution and collection

systems 1,400,570   37,823 (3,040) 1,435,353  
Buildings and equipment 450,138   6,236 (3,193) 453,181  

Total utility plant,
at historical cost 1,856,303   44,059 (6,233) 1,894,129  

Under construction 40,555   57,355 (44,059) 53,851  
Less accumulated

depreciation for:
Distribution and

collection systems (663,268) (30,735)* 2,852   (691,151) 
Buildings and equipment (122,512) (11,825)* 3,158   (131,179) 

Utility plant, net $ 1,111,078   58,854 (44,282) 1,125,650  

 

* Cost of removal of approximately $2.5 million was charged to expense as incurred in FY 2012 
and is not included in accumulated depreciation. 

(h) Revenue Recognition 

The Company is primarily a natural gas distribution company. Operating revenues include revenues 
from the sale of natural gas to residential, commercial, and industrial heating and nonheating 
customers. The Company also provides natural gas transportation service. Appliance and other 
revenues primarily consist of revenue from the Company’s parts and labor repair program. Revenue 
from this program is recognized on a monthly basis for the life of the individual parts and labor 
plans. Additional revenue is generated from collection fees and reconnection charges. Other 
operating revenues primarily consist of finance charges assessed on delinquent accounts. 

The Company bills customers for the cost of natural gas and the related costs incurred through the 
processing, distribution, and delivery of natural gas to residential, commercial, and industrial heating 
and nonheating customers. 

Revenue includes amounts related to gas that has been used by customers but has not yet been billed. 
Revenues are recognized as gas is distributed. Estimated revenues from gas distributed and unbilled, 
less estimated uncollectible amounts, are accrued and included in operating revenues and were 
$7.3 million and $5.9 million for the years ended August 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 
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(i) Operating Expenses 

The Company recognizes costs incurred as part of the Company’s regular business activities on the 
statements of revenue and expenses and changes in net position as operating expenses. These costs 
include distribution, marketing, gas processing, and other similar costs. 

Costs incurred that do not involve normal business operations are recognized as non-operating 
expenses. 

(j) Provision for Uncollectible Accounts 

The Company estimates its accumulated provision for uncollectible accounts based on a financial 
analysis and a collectibility study performed as of the fiscal year-end. The methodology used in 
performing the collectibility study has been reviewed by the PGC. For FY 2013 and FY 2012, 
management has provided an accumulated provision for uncollectible accounts in excess of the 
collectibility study results based on its analysis of historical aging data. The actual results of the 
Company’s collection efforts could differ significantly from the Company’s estimate. 

Due to the seasonal nature of the business, the Company carries credit balances in accounts 
receivable primarily as a result of prepayment by budget customers. Credit balances of $17.0 million 
and $24.0 million for FY 2013 and FY 2012, respectively, have been reclassified to accounts 
payable. 

(k) Gas Inventories, Materials, and Supplies 

Gas inventories, materials, and supplies, consisting primarily of fuel stock, gases stored to meet peak 
demand requirements, and spare parts, are stated at average cost at August 31, 2013 and 2012, as 
follows (thousands of U.S. dollars): 

2013 2012

Gas inventory $ 70,638    73,086   
Material and supplies 9,596    8,000   

Total $ 80,234    81,086   
 

(l) Bond Insurance Costs, Debt Discount, and Premium 

Discounts or premiums and bond insurance costs arising from the sale of revenue bonds are 
amortized using the interest method over the term of the related bond issue. Other costs of bond 
issuance are expensed as incurred. 

(m) Losses on Reacquired Debt 

Losses on reacquired debt are recorded as deferred outflows of resources and amortized, using the 
interest method, to interest expense over the shorter of the life of the refunding bond issue or the 
remaining original amortization period. 
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(n) Pensions and Postemployment Benefits 

The City sponsors a single employer defined benefit pension plan, the Philadelphia Gas Works 
Pension Plan (the Pension Plan) to provide pension benefits for all of PGW’s employees. In 
December 2011, the Pension Plan was amended by Ordinance and a new deferred compensation plan 
was authorized by Ordinance as well. Newly hired employees have an irrevocable option to join 
either a new deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code 
Section 401 or the existing defined benefit plan. The deferred compensation plan provides for an 
employer contribution equal to 5.5% of applicable wages. The defined benefit plan provides for a 
newly hired employee contribution equal to 6.0% of applicable wages. The Ordinance did not affect 
the retirement benefits of active employees, current retirees and beneficiaries, or terminated 
employees entitled to benefits but not yet receiving them. The Pension Plan covers all employees and 
provides for retirement payments for vested employees at age 65 or earlier under various options, 
which includes a disability pension provision, a preretirement spouse or domestic partner’s death 
benefit, a reduced pension for early retirement, various reduced pension payments for the election of 
a survivor option, and a provision for retirement after 30 years of service without penalty for reduced 
age. In accordance with Resolutions of the PGC, Ordinances of City Council, and as prescribed by 
the City’s Director of Finance, the Pension Plan is being funded with contributions by the Company 
to the Sinking Fund Commission of the City. Management believes that the Pension Plan is in 
compliance with all applicable laws. 

The Company sponsors a single employer defined benefit healthcare plan and provides 
postemployment healthcare and life insurance benefit in accordance with their retiree medical 
program to approximately 2,044 and 2,018 retirees, their beneficiaries, and dependents for FY 2013 
and FY 2012, respectively. The Company also offers such benefits to approximately 1,636 and 1,660 
active employees and their dependents for FY 2013 and FY 2012, respectively, by charging the 
annual insurance premiums to expense. 

The difference between the annual OPEB cost (AOC) and the Company’s contributions results in an 
increase or decrease to the net OPEB obligation, which is recorded in other liabilities and expensed. 

(o) Cash Equivalents 

For the purpose of reporting cash equivalents, all highly liquid investments with original maturities 
of three months or less are considered cash equivalents, except those held for long-term purposes in 
the Sinking Fund, Capital Improvement Fund, Workers’ Compensation Escrow Fund, and Health 
Insurance Escrow Fund as described in note 3. 

(p) Reserve for Injuries and Damages 

The Company is principally insured through insurance carriers. However, the Company is required 
to cover settlement of claims, which are excluded under the provisions of such insurance policies. An 
estimated liability has been established, in accordance with PGC regulations, for settlements to be 
paid by the Company in the next fiscal year. 
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Estimated losses from claims for occurrences not covered by insurance, which will not be paid in the 
next fiscal year, have been accrued. Such liabilities have been established based upon Company 
history and consultation with counsel. Such expenses are expected to be recovered through future 
rates. Charges against the reserve are made as claims are settled. 

(q) Segment Information 

All of the Company’s assets and operations are employed in only one segment, local transportation 
and distribution of natural gas in the City. 

(r) Estimates 

In preparing the financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP, management uses estimates. 
The Company has disclosed in the financial statements all estimates where it is reasonably possible 
that the estimate will change in the near term and the effect of the change could be material to the 
financial statements. 

(s) Pollution Remediation 

Under Pennsylvania Act 2, Land Recycling and Environmental Remediation Standards Act of 1995 
(Act 2), the Notice of Intent to Remediate (NIR) process was conducted by the Company in 
October 2004 and a total of four Public Involvement Plan meetings were conducted at multiple City 
Recreation Centers throughout Philadelphia during February and March 2005. In March 2005 (after 
the public meetings were conducted), the Company submitted a series of five Remedial Investigation 
Reports (RIRs) to the Act 2 for review. In July 2005, the Act 2 program approved all five RIRs 
submitted in March 2005. 

The Company estimates its pollution remediation obligations using the effective cash flow method, 
in which measurement is based on the outlays expected to be incurred as a sum of 
probability-weighted amounts in a range of possible estimated amounts. The Company’s liability is 
based on a combination of internal and external cost estimates for the specific remediation activities 
agreed to as part of Act 2 and Pennsylvania Act 32, Storage Tank and Spill Prevention Act of 1989 
(Act 32). 

Estimated site liabilities are determined based upon existing remediation laws and technologies, 
specific site consultants’ engineering studies, or by extrapolating experience with environmental 
issues at comparable sites. Estimates may change substantially as additional information becomes 
available regarding the level of contamination at specific sites, available remediation methods, and 
changes in price, technology, proposed land use, or applicable regulations. 

The Company recorded an additional liability for pollution remediation obligations of $0.5 million 
and $2.2 million for FY 2013 and FY 2012, respectively. The pollution remediation liability is 
reflected in other liabilities and in other current liabilities. In accordance with U.S. GAAP for 
regulated entities, the Company has also recognized the long-term portion of its environmental 
remediation liability as a regulatory asset because based on available evidence it is probable that the 
previously incurred costs will be recovered through rates. 
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(t) New Accounting Pronouncements 

GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities 

During FY 2013, the Company implemented GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as 
Assets and Liabilities (GASB 65), that amends or supersedes the accounting and financial reporting 
guidance for certain items previously required to be reported as assets or liabilities. The objective is 
to either properly classify certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities as 
deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources or recognize certain items that were 
previously reported as assets and liabilities as outflows of resources (expenses) or inflows of 
resources (revenues). 

The following summarizes the impact of implementation of GASB 65 on the Company’s financial 
statements for all periods presented (thousands of U.S. dollars): 

• Certain debt issuance costs are now expensed rather than recorded as an asset and amortized 
over the life of the debt. This provision was applied retroactively and resulted in beginning net 
assets as of September 1, 2011 being reduced by $5.6 million. 

• Unamortized losses on reacquired debt of $44.9 million and $53.2 million at August 31, 2013 
and 2012, respectively were reclassified from assets to deferred outflows of resources. 

GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions; an amendment of 
GASB Statement No. 27 (GASB 68) 

GASB 68 is effective for financial statements for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2014. The 
Company plans to implement GASB 68 for its year ended August 31, 2014 because its financial 
statements are used on a year lag by the City, which has a June 30 year-end. 

Under current accounting standards, a pension asset or liability is reflected on the balance sheet in 
the event that annual contributions are less than the actuarially determined annual required 
contribution which includes an amortization of any underfunded balance. In contrast, GASB 68 
requires the total net pension asset or net pension liability (including any underfunded balance) to be 
reported on the face of the balance sheet. At August 31, 2013 the net pension liability that would 
have been reported on the balance sheet under GASB 68 was approximately $148 million. 

(u) Reclassifications 

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to current year presentation. 

(2) Ownership and Management and Related-Party Transactions and Balances 

The Company is a component unit of the City. As of January 1, 1973, under the terms of a two-year 
agreement automatically extended for successive two-year periods unless canceled upon 90 days’ notice by 
the City, the Company is being managed by the Philadelphia Facilities Management Corporation (PFMC). 
The agreement, as amended, provides for reimbursement to PFMC of actual costs incurred in managing the 
Company, not to exceed a total of the prior fiscal year’s maximum amount adjusted to reflect the 
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percentage change in the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U) All Items Index, 
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, United States Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics, as most 
recently published and available to the Director of Finance of the City on March 1 of each such fiscal year. 
In FY 2013, the applicable maximum amount was calculated to be $1.2 million. In FY 2012, the applicable 
maximum amount was calculated to be $1.1 million. The agreement requires the Company to make annual 
payments of $18.0 million to the City. In FY 2013 and FY 2012, the Company made the annual payment 
of $18.0 million to the City. 

The Company engages in various other transactions with the City. The Company provides gas service to 
the City. Operating revenues include $7.3 million and $6.4 million in FY 2013 and FY 2012, respectively, 
relating to sales to the City. Net amounts receivable from the City were $0.2 million at August 31, 2013 
and 2012. Water and sewer services and licenses are purchased from the City. Such purchases totaled 
$0.9 million and $0.6 million in FY 2013 and FY 2012, respectively. 

Certain activities of the PGC are paid for by the Company. Such payments totaled $0.8 million and 
$0.7 million in FY 2013 and FY 2012, respectively. 

(3) Cash and Cash Equivalents, and Investments 

(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of bank deposits, money market accounts, and 
investments purchased through various brokerage relationships. Bank balances of such deposits, 
accounts, and investments at August 31, 2013 and 2012 were $100.8 million and $75.8 million 
respectively. Book balances of such deposits and accounts at August 31, 2013 and 2012 were 
$100.9 million and $75.8 million, respectively. Federal depository insurance on these balances at 
August 31, 2013 was $0.5 million and unlimited in 2012. The remaining balances are not insured. 
Excess cash balances are invested in money market accounts, U.S. Treasury bills, U.S. government 
agencies and instrumentalities, and corporate obligations (short term investments). 

The highest balance of short term investments during FY 2013 and FY 2012 was $85.0 million and 
$141.0 million, respectively. Short term investments with a carrying amount (at fair value) of 
$84.2 million and $74.6 million at August 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, are included in the 
balances presented above. 

(b) Restricted Investment Funds 

The investments in the Company’s Sinking Fund, Capital Improvement Fund, Workers’ 
Compensation Escrow Fund, and Health Insurance Escrow Fund consist primarily of U.S. Treasury 
and government agency obligations, corporate obligations, and money market accounts. These 
investments are maintained by the City or in the Company’s name by its agent. The balance of the 
Capital Improvement Fund at August 31, 2013 and 2012 was $44.1 million and $88.8 million 
respectively. The unexpended Capital Improvement Fund proceeds were restricted to the purchase of 
utility plant. In FY 2013 and FY 2012, the Company utilized the Capital Improvement Fund to 
provide liquidity for the additions to utility plant. 
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Investments are recorded at fair value except for certain money market funds recorded at amortized 
cost. The adjustment to market value for the Capital Improvement Fund resulted in a loss of 
$0.1 million in FY 2013 and a loss of $0.3 million in FY 2012. The adjustment to market value for 
the Sinking Fund resulted in a loss of $0.2 million in FY 2013 and a gain of less than $0.2 million in 
FY 2012. 

Pursuant to the Pennsylvania Department of Labor and Industry Bureau of Workers’ Compensation 
Self-Insurance policy, the Company has to establish and maintain a restricted trust account. As of 
August 31, 2013 and 2012, the trust account balances were $2.6 million. 

Effective September 1, 2011, PGW self-insured the healthcare for active employees and retirees 
under the age of 65. Retirees over the age of 65 are insured on an experience rated basis. Prior to 
September 1, 2011, the Company had entered into several one-year contracts to provide healthcare 
for both active and retired employees that are experience rated, and premiums were adjusted 
annually. As a result of transitioning to the self-insured model, the Company was required to 
establish and maintain a restricted escrow account. The balance in the Health Insurance Escrow Fund 
was $3.2 million as of August 31, 2013 and 2012. 
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The following is a schedule that details the Company’s investments in the Capital Improvement 
Fund (thousands of U.S. dollars): 

August 31, 2013
Weighted
average
maturity Credit Rating

Investment type Fair value (years) rating agency

U.S. government obligations:
U.S. Treasury notes $ 1,700    —  AAA/AA+ Moody’s/S&P

U.S. government agencies and
instrumentalities:

Federal National Mortgage
Association medium
term notes 6,313    —  AAA/AA+ Moody’s/S&P

Federal Home Loan Bank
bonds 8,962    —  AAA/AA+ Moody’s/S&P

Federal Home Loan
Mortgage Corporation
medium term notes 6,629    —  AAA/AA+ Moody’s/S&P

Federal Farm Credit Bank Bonds 2,311    —  AAA/AA+ Moody’s/S&P
Federal Home Loan Banks

discount notes 100    —  Moody’s/S&P
Federal National Mortgage

Association discount notes 1,980    —  AAA/AA+ Moody’s/S&P

Total
U.S. government
agencies and
instrumentalities 26,295   

Corporate obligations:
New York Life Global Funding 924    —  AAA/AA+ Moody’s/S&P
Berkshire Hathaway Financial 281    —  AA2/AA+ Moody’s/S&P
Massmutual Global Funding 254    —  AA2/AA+ Moody’s/S&P
Xto Energy Inc 913    —  AAA/AAA Moody’s/S&P
Walmart Stores 283    —  AA2/AA Moody’s/S&P
Microsoft 500    —  AAA/AAA Moody’s/S&P

Total corporate
obligations 3,155   

Foreign issues:
Shell International Financial 734   

Total fair value of
investments 31,884   
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August 31, 2013
Weighted
average
maturity Credit Rating

Investment type Fair value (years) rating agency

Money market:
First American Prime

Obligations Class Z $ 12,010  N/A Moody’s/S&P
Morgan Stanley Prime

Portfolio Institutional
Class 100  N/A Moody’s/S&P

Total money market 12,110  

Other 61  

Total fair value of
investments,
including cash
deposits $ 44,055  

Portfolio weighted modified
duration 0.2752  
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August 31, 2012
Weighted
average
maturity Credit Rating

Investment type Fair value (years) rating agency

U.S. government obligations:
U.S. Treasury notes $ 5,264  0.7419  AAA/AA+ Moody’s/S&P

U.S. government agencies and
instrumentalities:

Federal National Mortgage
Association medium
term notes 20,645  0.2317  AAA/AA+ Moody’s/S&P

Federal Home Loan Bank
bonds 15,639  0.5879  AAA/AA+ Moody’s/S&P

Federal Home Loan
Mortgage Corporation
medium term notes 12,596  0.3311  AAA/AA+ Moody’s/S&P

Federal Farm Credit Bank
bonds 1,950  0.9167  AAA/AA+ Moody’s/S&P

Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation discount notes 1,498  0.8833  AAA/AA+ Moody’s/S&P

Total
U.S. government
agencies and
instrumentalities 52,328  

Corporate obligations:
New York Life Global Funding 566  0.6917  AAA/AA+ Moody’s/S&P
Berkshire Hathaway Financial 1,331  0.2183  AA2/AA+ Moody’s/S&P
General Electric Capital

Corporation 553  0.1361  A1/AA+ Moody’s/S&P

Total corporate
obligations 2,450  

Total fair value of
investments 60,042  
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August 31, 2012
Weighted
average
maturity Credit Rating

Investment type Fair value (years) rating agency

Cash and cash equivalents:
Bank of Nova Scotia

commercial paper $ 749  0.3528  A-1+/P-1 Moody’s/S&P
Toyota Motor Credit

Company commercial paper 897  0.4472  A-1+/P-1 Moody’s/S&P
UBS Finance Delaware

commercial paper 959  0.1402  A-1/P-1 Moody’s/S&P

Total cash and cash
equivalents 2,605  

Money market:
Fidelity Governmental Fund 57
First American Prime 13,152  N/A N/A

Obligations Class Z 12,825  N/A N/A
Morgan Stanley Prime Portfolio

Institutional Class 100  N/A N/A

Total money market 26,077  

Other 114  

Total fair value of
investments,
including cash
deposits $ 88,838  

Portfolio weighted modified duration 0.4265  
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The following is a schedule that details the Company’s investments in the Sinking Fund (thousands 
of U.S. dollars): 

August 31, 2013
Weighted
average
maturity Credit Rating

Investment type Fair value (years) rating agency

U.S. government obligations:
U.S. Treasury notes $ 60,705    1.0000 AAA/AA+ Moody’s/S&P

U.S. government agencies
and instrumentalities:

Federal National
Mortgage Association
medium term notes 12,979    1.0000 AAA/AA+ Moody’s/S&P

Federal Home Loan Bank bonds 9,689    1.0000 AAA/AA+ Moody’s/S&P
Federal Farm Credit Bank bonds 4,005    2.0000 AAA/AA+ Moody’s/S&P

Total
U.S. government
agencies and
instrumentalities 26,673   

Total fair value of
investments 87,378   
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August 31, 2013
Weighted
average
maturity Credit Rating

Investment type Fair value (years) rating agency

Corporate Obligations: P-1/A-1+ Moody’s/S&P
Walmart Stores 2,302   
Berkshire Hathaway Financial 550    AA2/AA Moody’s/S&P
General Electric Capital

Corporation 1,840    P-1/A-1+ Moody’s/S&P

Total Corporation
obligations 4,692   

State Obligations:
Pennsylvania ST Second Ser $ 797    AA2/AA Moody’s/S&P

Cash and cash equivalents:
Bank of Tokyo Mitsubishi

commercial paper 2,802    P-1/A-1 Moody’s/S&P
BNP Paribus Finance Inc

commercial paper 2,074    P-1/A-1 Moody’s/S&P
Rabobank USA Financial

Corporation commercial 2,818    P-1/A-1+ Moody’s/S&P
paper

UBS Finance Delaware
commercial paper 2,072    P-1/A-1 Moody’s/S&P

Toyota Motor Credit
Corporation commercial
paper 1,199    P-1/A-1+ Moody’s/S&P

General Electric Capital
Corporation commercial 1,275    P-1/A-1+ Moody’s/S&P

paper
Money Market:

First American Government
Obligations Fund CL Z 173    Aaa-mf/AAAm Moody’s/S&P

Total cash and cash
equivalents 12,413   

Total fair value of
investments,
including cash
deposits $ 105,280   

Portfolio weighted modified
duration 1.0442
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August 31, 2012
Weighted
average
maturity Credit Rating

Investment type Fair value (years) rating agency

Guaranteed investment contracts $ 41,829   8.5028   * *

U.S. government obligations:
U.S. Treasury notes 41,791   1.1852   AAA/AA+ Moody’s/S&P

U.S. government agencies
and instrumentalities:

Federal National
Mortgage Association

medium term notes 8,796   0.7892 AAA/AA+ Moody’s/S&P
Federal Home Loan Bank bonds 6,448   0.9504 AAA/AA+ Moody’s/S&P
Federal Home Loan Mortgage 

Corporation medium term notes 942   0.2167 AAA/AA+ Moody’s/S&P

Total
U.S. government
agencies and
instrumentalities 16,186  

Total fair value of
investments 99,806  

Cash and cash equivalents:
Toyota Motor Credit Company

commercial paper 1,193   0.6944 P-1/A-1+ Moody’s/S&P
Money market:

Fidelity Governmental Fund 57 4,313  

Total fair value of
investments,
including cash
deposits $ 105,312  

Portfolio weighted modified duration 1.0755

* The credit rating of this investment is unrated.
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The following is a schedule that details the Company’s investments in the Workers’ Compensation 
Escrow Fund (thousands of U.S. dollars): 

August 31, 2013
Weighted
average
maturity Credit Rating

Investment type Fair value (years) rating agency

Money market:
Fidelity Governmental Fund $ 2,597   N/A N/A N/A

Total fair value of
investments,
including cash
deposits $ 2,597  

 

August 31, 2012
Weighted
average
maturity Credit Rating

Investment type Fair value (years) rating agency

Money market:
Fidelity Governmental Fund $ 2,597   N/A N/A N/A

Total fair value of
investments,
including cash
deposits $ 2,597  
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The following is a schedule that details the Company’s investments in the Health Insurance Escrow 
Fund (thousands of U.S. dollars): 

August 31, 2013
Weighted
average
maturity Credit Rating

Investment type Fair value (years) rating agency

Money market:
Fidelity Governmental Fund $ 3,223   N/A N/A N/A

Total fair value of
investments,
including cash
deposits $ 3,223  

 

August 31, 2012
Weighted
average
maturity Credit Rating

Investment type Fair value (years) rating agency

Money market:
Fidelity Governmental Fund $ 3,222   N/A N/A N/A

Total fair value of
investments,
including cash
deposits $ 3,222  

 

(c) Interest Rate Risk 

It is the policy of the City to diversify its investment portfolios. Portfolio diversification is employed 
as a way to control risk. Investments shall be diversified as to maturities, and as to kind of 
investments to minimize the risk of loss, which might result from over concentration of assets in a 
specific maturity, in a specific kind of a security, or from a specific issuer or industry. 

(d) Credit Risk 

The City has adopted an investment policy relating to the investments of the Company. Per the 
investment policy, the Company’s allowable investments are: (1) bonds or notes of the 
U.S. government; (2) U.S. Treasury obligations, including separate trading of registered interest and 
principal securities (STRIPS); receipts indicating an undivided interest in such U.S. Treasury 
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obligations; and stripped coupons held under book-entry with the New York Federal Reserve Bank; 
(3) obligations of the following U.S. government-sponsored agencies; Government National 
Mortgage Association, Federal National Mortgage Association, Federal Home Loan Mortgage 
Corporation, Federal Farm Credit System, Federal Home Loan Bank, Resolution Funding 
Corporation, and Tennessee Valley Authority; (4) collateralized banker’s acceptances and certificate 
of deposit denominated in U.S. dollars and issued by a city code authorized depository certificate of 
deposit must be secured by acceptable collateral with a total market value equal to 102.0% of the 
deposit; (5) commercial paper with a stated maturity of 270 days or less, which is rated P1 by 
Moody’s or A1+ by Standard & Poor’s (S&P). The senior long-term debt of the commercial paper 
issuer, or the entity providing and explicit guarantee, must be rated not lower than A2 by Moody’s or 
A by S&P; (6) asset backed commercial paper (ABCP), which does not have a long-term rating, is an 
allowable investment if it meets the short-term rating requirements but is only allowed up to the 
ABCP sublimit; (7) general obligation bonds of corporations rated Aa2 or better by Moody’s or AA 
or better by S&P with a final maturity of two years or less; (8) collateralized mortgage obligations 
and pass-through securities directly issued by a federal agency or instrumentality of the United 
States, the underlying security for which is guaranteed by an agency or instrumentality of the United 
States and with a final maturity of two years or less, the rating must be no lower than Aa2 by 
Moody’s or AA by S & P; (9) money market mutual funds, as defined by the Securities and 
Exchange Commission money markets funds must have assets over $15 billion, have the highest 
rating from Moody’s, S&P, and Fitch, and contain only government securities; (10) repurchase 
agreements that are fully collateralized in bonds or notes of the U.S. government pledged to the City 
and held in the City’s name and deposited at the time the investment is made with an entity or a third 
party selected and approved by the City the market value of the collateral shall be at least 102.0% of 
the funds being disbursed; and (11) obligations of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 
(the Commonwealth) or any municipality or other political subdivision of the Commonwealth with a 
final maturity of two years or less and a rating of at least AA by Moody’s or S&P. 

Authorized investments for Sinking Fund Portfolios are dictated by the First Class City Revenue 
Bond Act of the General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, approved October 18, 
1972. This also includes any investment vehicle permitted for any Commonwealth state agency. 

(e) Custodial Credit Risk 

The Company has selected custodian banks that are members of the Federal Reserve System to hold 
its investments. Delivery of the applicable investment documents to the Company’s custodian is 
required for all investments. For secured transactions, such as repurchase agreements, either the title 
to or a perfected security interest in the securities, along with any necessary transfer documents, must 
be transferred to the custodian. Such transactions will always use delivery versus payment 
procedures. 
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(f) Concentration of Credit Risk 

The Company’s investment policy provides for the following percentage limitations of authorized 
investments, valued at market: 

Percent of
Percent of Percent of outstanding
portfolio portfolio securities
allowed per issuer per issuer

U.S. government 100% 100% N/A
U.S. Treasury 100 100 N/A
U.S. Agencies 100 33 N/A
Certificates of Deposit
Banker’s Acceptances, Eurodollar

Deposits, and Euro Certificates
of Deposit 15 3 —    

Commercial Paper 25 3 3%
Corporate Bonds 25 3 3
Collateralized Mortgage Obligation

and Passthroughs 5 3 3
Money Market Mutual Funds 25 10 3
Repurchase Agreements 25 10 N/A

 

More than 25% of the Company’s investments as of August 31, 2013 are in the following; Federal 
Home Loan Mortgage Corporation medium term notes (12.3%), Federal Home Loan Bank bonds 
(9.2%), and Federal Farm Credit bank bonds (3.8%). These investments are in accordance with the 
City’s investment policy. In addition, the GIC was terminated in March 2013. 

(4) Recoverable Costs 

In compliance with orders issued by the PGC, the cost of projects that produce benefits over an extended 
period is recorded to the balance sheet as a recoverable cost in other assets. Such costs are being amortized 
to expense over a period matching their useful lives, which range from two to ten years. There is no return 
on the asset being charged to the customers. The unamortized costs included in other assets were 
$0.0 million and $0.2 million as of August 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The unamortized costs 
included in other current assets were $0.2 million and $0.3 million as of August 31, 2013 and 2012, 
respectively. 

In accordance with U.S. GAAP for regulated entities, the Company has recognized the long-term portion 
of its environmental remediation liability as a regulatory asset because based on available evidence it is 
probable that the previously incurred costs will be recovered through rates. In FY 2013, settlements by the 
Company’s insurance carriers provided less than $0.1 million associated with environmental remediation 
costs. Environmental remediation costs of approximately $0.7 million in FY 2013 were offset by these 
insurance settlements, and the remainder was recorded to the balance sheet as a recoverable cost in other 
assets. The Company estimates additional expenditures to be approximately $30.8 million. 
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(5) Deferred Compensation Plan 

The Company offers its employees a deferred compensation plan (the Plan) created in accordance with 
Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The Plan, available to all Company employees with six months of 
service, permits them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The Company provides an annual 
10.0% matching contribution of applicable wages that immediately vests to the employee. The Company 
contributed $0.3 million in FY 2013 and FY 2012. 

(6) Notes Payable 

Pursuant to the provisions of certain ordinances and resolutions of the City, the Company may sell 
short-term notes in a principal amount that, together with interest, may not exceed $150.0 million 
outstanding at any time. These notes are intended to provide additional working capital. They are 
supported by irrevocable letters of credit and a subordinated security interest in the Company’s revenues. 

The commitment amount is $60.0 million under the current credit agreements. The expiration date of the 
credit agreements is March 17, 2015. 

There were no outstanding notes payable at August 31, 2013 and 2012. 

(7) GCR Tariff Reconciliation 

During the fiscal year ended August 31, 2013 the Company’s actual gas costs were below its billed gas 
costs by approximately $6.9 million. This amount was recorded in Other current assets for FY 2013. 
Actual gas costs were $4.7 million higher than billed gas costs in FY 2012. 

Natural Gas Pipeline Supplier Refund 

The Company received refunds including interest of approximately $0.1 million in FY 2013 and FY 2012, 
related to Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC)/Pipeline Rate Cases. This amount was utilized 
as a reduction in the cost of gas for reconciliation purposes in the calculation of the applicable GCR. 

(8) Long-Term Debt and Other Liabilities 

The following summary of long-term debt consists primarily of bonds issued by the City under agreements 
whereby the Company must reimburse the City for the principal and interest payments required by the 
bond ordinances for the fiscal years ended August 31, 2013 and 2012 (thousands of U.S. dollars): 

August 31, 2013 August 31, 2012
Current Current
portion Long-term Total portion Long-term Total

Revenue bonds $ 49,800  1,015,920  1,065,720  27,720  1,065,720  1,093,440  
Unamortized discount (248) (2,160) (2,408) (293) (2,375) (2,668) 
Unamortized premium 2,854  20,216  23,070  3,118  23,157  26,275  

Total revenue bonds $ 52,406  1,033,976  1,086,382  30,545  1,086,502  1,117,047  
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The following is a summary of activity related to revenue bonds and other liabilities and the respective 
balances for the fiscal years ended August 31, 2013 and 2012 (thousands of U.S. dollars): 

Year ended August 31, 2013
Beginning Ending

balance Additions Reductions balance

Revenue bonds $ 1,093,440   —   (27,720) 1,065,720  
Other liabilities:

Unamortized balance of
Guaranteed Investment
Contract in Sinking Fund $ 5,309   —   (5,309) —  

Claims and judgments 3,438   2,048   —   5,486  
Environmental clean-up 29,195   327   —   29,522  
Other postemployment benefits 111,068   —   (2,008) 109,060  
Interest rate swap liability 57,435   —   (24,072) 33,363  

Total other liabilities $ 206,445   2,375   (31,389) 177,431  
 

Year ended August 31, 2012
Beginning Ending

balance Additions Reductions balance

Revenue bonds $ 1,195,773   88,855   (191,188) 1,093,440  

Other liabilities
Unamortized balance of

Guaranteed Investment
Contract in Sinking Fund $ 5,933   —   (624) 5,309  

Claims and judgments 6,557   —   (3,119) 3,438  
Environmental clean-up 24,269   4,926   —   29,195  
Other postemployment benefits 109,448   1,620   —   111,068  
Interest rate swap liability 51,671   5,764   —   57,435  

Total other liabilities $ 197,878   12,310   (3,743) 206,445  
 

Liability amounts due within one year are reflected in the other current liabilities line of the balance sheet, 
and are not included in the tables above. 
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Principal maturities and scheduled interest payments for revenue bonds and estimated payments on the 
interest rate swaps are as follows (thousands of U.S. dollars): 

Revenue bonds
Net swap

Principal Interest amount Total

Fiscal year ending August 31:
2014 $ 49,800    49,201    7,999    107,000   
2015 50,975    46,756    7,999    105,730   
2016 49,155    44,091    7,999    101,245   
2017 49,895    41,723    8,000    99,618   
2018 49,355    39,238    7,939    96,532   
2019 – 2023 260,600    160,803    31,590    452,993   
2024 – 2028 268,260    101,083    13,695    383,038   
2022 – 2033 142,555    51,355    —     193,910   
2034 – 2038 126,715    18,761    —     145,476   
2039 – 2040 18,410    1,462    —     19,872   

Total $ 1,065,720    554,473    85,221    1,705,414   

 

Future debt service is calculated using rates in effect at August 31, 2013 for variable rate bonds. The 
variable rate received under the swaps is 70% of LIBOR until maturity. 

(a) Bond Issuances – Refunding of Bonds and Defeasance of Bonds 

1975 Ordinance Twentieth Series Bonds 

On September 28, 2011, the City issued Gas Works Revenue Bonds, Twentieth Series in the amount 
of $16.2 million for the purpose of refunding the entire Sixteenth Series Bond (1975 General 
Ordinance), and paying the costs of issuing the bonds. The Twentieth Series Bonds, with fixed 
interest rates that range from 2.0% to 5.0%, have maturity dates through 2015. The cost of issuance 
related to this transaction was approximately $0.2 million. The loss on refunding the Sixteenth Series 
Bonds and issuing the Twentieth Series Bonds of $0.6 million will be amortized over the life of the 
Twentieth Series Bonds. This transaction provided debt service savings of $1.4 million on a 3.0% net 
present value basis. 

1998 Ordinance Tenth Series Bonds 

On August 28, 2012, the Company defeased $20.2 million of principal for bonds issued under the 
1998 General Ordinance. The defeased bonds were for these respective series and amounts: Fourth 
Series – $3.1 million, Fifth Series – $2.9 million, Seventh Series – $6.1 million, Eighth Series A – 
$5.3 million and Ninth Series – $2.8 million. 

On September 28, 2011, the City issued Gas Works Revenue Bonds, Tenth Series in the amount of 
$72.6 million for the purpose of refunding the entire First Series A, First Series C, Second Series, 
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and Third Series Bonds (1998 General Ordinance), and paying the costs of issuing the bonds. The 
Tenth Series Bonds, with fixed interest rates that range from 3.0% to 5.0% have maturity dates 
through 2026. The cost of issuance related to this transaction was approximately $1.3 million. The 
loss on refunding the First Series A, First Series C, Second Series, and Third Series Bonds and 
issuing the Tenth Series Bonds of $3.9 million will be amortized over the life of the Tenth Series 
Bonds. This transaction provided debt service savings of $6.2 million on a 3.0% net present value 
basis. 

On September 1, 2011, the City defeased $29.5 million of the Eighth Series Variable Rate Bonds 
utilizing internally generated funds. As a result of this defeasance, a portion of the related interest 
rate swap agreement was terminated. The termination payment was approximately $7.0 million. 
Concurrently, the letters of credit for the Eighth Series B, C, and D Bonds were extended and the 
Series E letter of credit was replaced. The remaining Eighth Series Bonds in the amount of 
$225.5 million were then remarketed, with the remaining aggregate principal being reallocated 
among the Eighth Series B Bonds ($50.3 million), the Eighth Series C Bonds ($50.0 million), the 
Eighth Series D Bonds ($75.0 million), and Eighth Series E Bonds ($50.2 million). The related swap 
agreement was amended to reflect these new notional amounts for each of the issuances. 

Interest rates and maturities of the outstanding revenue bonds are detailed as follows (thousands of 
U.S. dollars): 

Maturity Balance outstanding
Interest date August 31, August 31,

rates (fiscal year) 2013 2012
4th Series 4.00% – 5.25% 2032 $ 81,075   81,075  
17th Series 4.00% – 5.38% 2026 110,940   121,700  
5th Series 4.00% – 5.25% 2034 109,310   109,310  
5th Series A-2 Variable 2035 30,000   30,000  
18th Series 5.00% – 5.25% 2021 30,360   33,525  
19th Series 5.00% 2024 14,450   14,450  
20th Series 2.00% – 5.00% 2015 9,595   16,215  
7th Series 4.00% – 5.00% 2038 183,460   183,460  
7th Series Refunding 5.00% 2029 28,385   28,385  
8th Series A 4.00% – 5.25% 2017 48,035   48,035  
8th Series B Variable 2028 50,260   50,260  
8th Series C Variable 2028 50,000   50,000  
8th Series D Variable 2028 75,000   75,000  
8th Series E Variable 2028 50,260   50,260  
9th Series 2.00% – 5.25% 2040 141,835   141,835  
10th Series 3.00% – 5.00% 2026 52,755   59,930  

$ 1,065,720   1,093,440  
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(b) Debt Coverage and Sinking Fund Requirements 

Under the terms of both general ordinances, the City is required to maintain rates to allow the 
Company to satisfy 1975 and 1998 revenue bond debt coverage ratio requirements. 

Also provided by both general ordinances is the establishment of a sinking fund into which deposits 
are made to meet all principal and interest requirements of the bonds in an amount equal to the 
maximum annual debt service requirement on the bonds of each respective general ordinance in any 
fiscal year.  

Funds in the Sinking Fund Reserve are to be applied to the payment of debt service if, for any 
reason, other funds in the Sinking Fund should be insufficient. 

The revenue bonds are, and will be, equally and ratably collateralized by a security interest in all of 
the Company’s project revenues, as defined in the general ordinances, and monies in the Sinking 
Fund. 

Portions of certain revenue bonds were issued as zero-coupon securities. Interest on these securities 
is accrued and compounded on the payment dates of the current interest bonds within the issue. The 
accrued interest in the amount of $10.8 million, and $11.3 million in FY 2013 and FY 2012, 
respectively, is reported as long-term debt. 

(c) Interest Rate Swap Agreements 

In January 2006, the City entered into a fixed rate payer, floating rate receiver interest rate swap to 
create a synthetic fixed rate for the Sixth Series Bonds. The interest rate swap was used to hedge 
interest rate risk. 

The swaps have a maturity date of August 1, 2031 and require the City to pay a fixed rate of 
3.6745% and receive a variable rate equal to 70.0% of one month LIBOR until maturity. 

In August 2009, the City terminated approximately $54.8 million of the notional amount of the swap, 
issued fixed rate refunding bonds related to that portion and kept the remaining portion of the swap 
to hedge the Eight Series variable rate refunding bonds backed with letters of credit. The Company 
paid a swap termination payment of $3.8 million to the counterparty to partially terminate the swap. 

The original swap confirmation was amended and restated on August 12, 2009 to reflect the 
principal amount of the Eighth Series B Bonds, with all other terms remaining the same. The 
remainder of the notional amount was divided among separate trade confirmations with the same 
terms as the original swap that was executed with the counterparty for the Eighth Series C through E. 

In September 2011, the underlying variable rate bonds were remarketed with new letters of credit. 
During the remarketing, PGW partially redeemed portions of the bonds, and re-allocated remaining 
principal amongst the bond subseries. At the same time, the City terminated an aggregate notional 
amount of $29.5 million of the swaps, keeping the remaining portion of the swap to hedge the 
remaining variable rate bonds backed with letters of credit. The partial termination was 
competitively bid, with the winning swap counterparty providing the lowest cost of 
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termination/assignment. PGW paid a swap termination payment of $7.0 million to partially terminate 
the swaps. The remaining notional amounts of each of the swaps were adjusted to match the 
reallocation of the underlying bonds. 

In April 2013, each of the swaps was amended to include additional language specifying the exact 
process to be used to calculate a termination amount in the event of an optional termination at the 
request of the City on or before April 1, 2015. 

As of August 31, 2013, the swaps had a notional amount of $225.5 million and the associated 
variable rate debt had a $225.5 million principal amount, broken down by series as follows: 

• The Series B swap had a notional amount of $50.3 million and the associated variable rate 
bonds had a $50.3 million principal amount. 

• The Series C swap had a notional amount of $50.0 million and the associated variable rate 
bonds had a $50.0 million principal amount. 

• The Series D swap had a notional amount of $75.0 million and the associated variable rate 
bonds had a $75.0 million principal amount. 

• The Series E swap had a notional amount of $50.2 million and the associated variable rate 
bonds had a $50.2 million principal amount. 

The final maturity date for all swaps is on August 1, 2028. 

As of August 31, 2013, the swaps had a combined negative fair value of approximately 
$33.4 million. The fair values of the interest rate swaps were estimated using the zero coupon 
method. That method calculates the future net settlement payments required by the swap, assuming 
current forward rates are implied by the current yield curve for hypothetical zero coupon bonds due 
on the date of each future net settlement on the swaps. 

As of August 31, 2013, the City is not exposed to credit risk because the swaps had a negative fair 
value. Should interest rates change and the fair value of the swaps become positive, the City would 
be exposed to credit risk in the amount of the swaps’ fair value. The swaps include a termination 
event additional to those in the standard ISDA master agreement based on credit ratings. The swaps 
may be terminated by the City if the rating of the counterparty falls below A3 or A – 
(Moody’s/S&P), unless the counterparty has: (i) assigned or transferred the swap to a party 
acceptable to the City; (ii) provided a credit support provider acceptable to the City whose 
obligations are pursuant to a credit support document acceptable to the City; or (iii) executed a credit 
support annex, in form and substance acceptable to the City, providing for the collateralization by the 
counterparty of its obligations under the swaps. 

The swaps may be terminated by the counterparty if the rating on the Company’s bonds falls below 
Baa2 or BBB (Moody’s/S&P). However, because the City’s swap payments are insured by Assured 
Guaranty Municipal Corporation, as long as Assured Guaranty Municipal Corporation is rated at or 
above A2 or A (Moody’s/S&P), the termination event based on the City’s ratings is stayed. At the 
present time, the rating for Assured Guaranty Municipal Corporation is at A2/AA – (Moody’s/S&P). 
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The City is exposed to (i) basis risk, as reflected by the relationship between the rate payable on the 
bonds and 70.0% of one month LIBOR received on the swap, and (ii) tax risk, a form of basis risk, 
where the City is exposed to a potential additional interest cost in the event that changes in the 
federal tax system or in marginal tax rates cause the rate paid on the outstanding bonds to be greater 
than the 70.0% of one month LIBOR received on the swap. 

The impact of the interest rate swaps on the financial statements for the year ended August 31, 2013 
and 2012 is as follows (thousands of U.S. dollars): 

Deferred
Interest rate outflow
swap liability of resources

Balance August 31, 2012 $ 57,435    34,712   
Change in fair value through August 31, 2013 (24,072)   (22,653)  
Balance August 31, 2013 $ 33,363    12,059   

 

Deferred
Interest rate outflow
swap liability of resources

Balance August 31, 2011 $ 51,671    25,360   
Change in fair value through August 31, 2012 5,764    9,352   
Balance August 31, 2012 $ 57,435    34,712   

 

The interest rate swap liability is included in other liabilities on the balance sheet. 

There are no collateral posting requirements associated with the swap agreements. 

(d) Guaranteed Investment Contracts in Sinking Fund 

On August 23, 2002, the City entered into GICs in connection with a portion of its 1975 and 1998 
Ordinance Sinking Fund Reserves for the Company. At settlement, approximately 65.0% of the 
Sinking Fund Reserves, from the two ordinances, totaling $61.4 million were invested in the GICs. 
In exchange for this investment, the Company received an up-front payment of $21.8 million in lieu 
of receiving interest payments over the life of the GICs.  

In March 2013, the City terminated the GICs in connection with 1975 and 1998 Ordinance Sinking 
Fund Reserves for the Company. At settlement, the Company paid $4.8 million to terminate the 
portion related to the 1975 Ordinance and $4.2 million to terminate the portion related to the 1998 
Ordinance Sinking Fund Reserves for the Company. As a result of the termination of the GICs, in 
FY 2013 the Company expensed $4.2 million to Interest and Other Income. 

The GICs were recorded at contract value in the Sinking Fund and had a contract value of 
$41.8 million at August 31, 2012. 



PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS 
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

August 31, 2013 and 2012 

 49 (Continued) 

Under the 1998 General Ordinance, the Company is entitled to the earnings on the portion of the 
Sinking Fund allocated to bonds issued under the 1998 General Ordinance. Therefore, the 
$11.6 million received under the 1998 ordinance was being amortized on a straight-line basis over 
the life of the agreement.  

(9) Defeased Debt 

Defeased debt of the Company (bonds issued by the Company payable from the proceeds of irrevocably 
pledged assets) at August 31, 2013 was as follows (thousands of U.S. dollars): 

Latest date Bonds
maturing to Interest rate outstanding

12th Series B 5/15/20 7.00 $ 32,510   
 

The investments held by the trustee and the defeased bonds are not recognized on the Company’s balance 
sheets in accordance with the terms of the Indentures of Defeasance. The investments pledged for the 
redemption of the defeased debt have maturities and interest payments scheduled to coincide with the 
trustee cash requirements for debt service. 

The assets pledged, primarily noncallable U.S. government securities, had a market value of $34.1 million 
at August 31, 2013, bearing interest on face value from 0.00% to 7.74%. 

(10) Pension Costs 

(a) Plan Description 

The Pension Plan sponsored by the City provides pension benefits for all eligible employees of the 
Company and other eligible class employees of PFMC and the PGC. The Company’s annual covered 
payroll (which was substantially equal to total payroll) was $106.0 million and $106.3 million at 
August 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 

At September 1, 2013, the beginning of the plan year of the last actuarial valuation, the Pension Plan 
membership consisted of: 

Retirees and beneficiaries currently
receiving benefits and terminated
employees entitled to benefits, but
not yet receiving them $ 2,373   

Participants:
Vested 1,174   
Nonvested 299   

Total participants 1,473   
Total membership $ 3,846   

 



PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS 
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

August 31, 2013 and 2012 

 50 (Continued) 

The Pension Plan provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. Retirement 
benefits vest after five years of credited service. Employees who retire at or after age 65 are entitled 
to receive an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly, in an amount equal to the greater of: 

• 1.25% of the first $6,600 of Final Average Earnings plus 1.75% of the excess of Final Average 
Earnings over $6,600, times years of credited service, with a maximum of 60.0% of the 
highest annual earnings during the last 10 years of credited service, or 

• 2.0% of total earnings received during the period of credited service plus 22.5% of the first 
$1,200 annual amount, applicable only to participants who were employees on or prior to 
March 24, 1967. 

Final Average Earnings are the employee’s average pay, over the highest five years of the last 
ten years of credited service. Employees with 15 years of credited service may retire at or after 
age 55 and receive a reduced retirement benefit. Employees with 30 years of service may retire 
without penalty for reduced age. 

Covered employees are not required to contribute to the Pension Plan. The Company is required by 
statute to contribute the amounts necessary to fund the Pension Plan. Benefit and contribution 
provisions are established by City Ordinance and may be amended only as allowed by City 
Ordinance. 

In December 2011, the Pension Plan sponsored by the City was amended by Ordinance and a new 
deferred compensation plan was authorized by Ordinance as well. Newly hired employees will have 
an irrevocable option to join either a new deferred compensation plan created in accordance with 
Internal Revenue Code Section 401 or the existing defined benefit plan. The deferred compensation 
plan provides for an employer contribution equal to 5.5% of applicable wages. The defined benefit 
plan provides for a newly hired employee contribution equal to 6.0% of applicable wages. The 
Ordinance did not affect the retirement benefits of active employees, current retirees and 
beneficiaries, or terminated employees entitled to benefits but not yet receiving them. 

The City issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information for the Pension Plan. The report may be obtained by writing to the Office 
of the Director of Finance of the City. 
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(b) Annual Pension Cost, Contributions Required, and Contributions Made 

The normal cost, amortization of the unfunded balance, and annual required and actual contributions 
for FY 2013 and the two preceding fiscal years were as follows (thousands of U.S. dollars): 

Amortization Annual
of the required and

Normal underfunded actual
cost balance contributions

Fiscal year ended August 31:
2013 $ 8,782    14,832    23,614   
2012 8,171    15,801    23,972   
2011 8,499    14,098    22,597   

 

Beneficiary payments of $41.6 million were made in FY 2013. Withdrawals from the pension assets 
of $14.5 million were utilized to meet these beneficiary payments. Additionally, $3.5 million is due 
to the Company from the pension fund at the end of FY 2013. 

The Company’s annual pension cost is equal to its annual required contribution (ARC). The ARCs 
were determined based on an actuarial study, or updates thereto, using the projected unit credit 
method. Significant actuarial assumptions used for the above valuation include a rate of return on the 
investment of present and future assets of 7.95% per year compounded annually; projected increases 
of 3.0% of the salary at the beginning of FY 2013; and retirements that are assumed to occur prior to 
age 62, at a rate of 10.0% at ages 55 to 61 and 100.0% at age 62. The assumptions did not include 
postretirement benefit increases. These actuarial assumptions are consistent with the prior fiscal year. 

The actuarial asset value is equal to the value of the fund assets as reported by the City with no 
adjustments. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized over 20 years. 
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The Pension Plan funding policy provides for periodic employer contributions at actuarially 
determined rates that, expressed as percentages of annual covered payroll, are sufficient to 
accumulate assets to pay benefits when due. Level percentages of payroll employer contribution 
rates are determined using the Projected Unit Credit actuarial funding method. The actuarial value of 
assets, actuarial accrued liability, unfunded actuarial accrued liability, funded ratio, covered payroll 
and the unfunded actuarial accrued liability of covered payroll for FY 2013, and the two preceding 
fiscal years were as follows (thousands of U.S. dollars): 

(b)
(a) Actuarial (b)-(a) UAAL

Actuarial Actuarial accrued Unfunded (a/b) as a percent
valuation value of liability AAL Funded Covered of covered

date assets (AAL) (UAAL) ratio payroll payroll

September 1, 2012 $ 437,780  585,632  147,852  74.8% $ 106,000  139.5%
September 1, 2011 421,949  572,190  150,241  73.7 106,308  141.3
September 1, 2010 381,975  533,630  151,655  71.6 106,125  142.9

 

The ARCs, contributions made, and net pension obligation for FY 2013 and the two preceding fiscal 
years were as follows (thousands of U.S. dollars): 

2013 2012 2011

Annual required contribution $ 23,614   23,972   22,597   
Contributions made (23,614)  (23,972)  (22,597)  

Net pension obligation $ —    —    —    

 

(11) Other Postemployment Benefits 

(a) Plan Description 

The Company sponsors a single employer defined benefit healthcare plan and provided 
postemployment healthcare and life insurance benefits to approximately 2,044 and 2,018 
participating retirees and their beneficiaries and dependents in FY 2013 and FY 2012, respectively, 
in accordance with their retiree medical program. The annual covered payroll (which was 
substantially equal to total payroll) was $110.1 million and $106.3 million at August 31, 2013 and 
2012, respectively. 

The Company pays the full cost of medical, basic dental, and prescription coverage for employees 
who retired prior to December 1, 2001. Employees who retire after December 1, 2001 are provided a 
choice of three plans at the Company’s expense and can elect to pay toward a more expensive plan. 
Retirees may also contribute toward enhanced dental plan and life insurance coverage. PGW pays 
100% of the cost for the prescription drug plan after drug co-pays. Union employees hired on or after 
May 21, 2011 and Non-Union employees hired on or after December 21, 2011 are entitled to receive 
post-retirement medical, prescription, and dental benefits for five years only. Currently, the 
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Company provides for the cost of healthcare and life insurance benefits for retirees and their 
beneficiaries on a pay-as-you-go basis. 

Total expense incurred for healthcare and life insurance related to retirees amounted to $23.7 million 
and $26.0 million, in FY 2013 and FY 2012, respectively. In addition, the Company expensed 
$18.5 million of funding for the OPEB Trust and retirees contributed $0.4 million towards their 
healthcare in both FY 2013 and FY 2012. These contributions represent the additional cost of 
healthcare plans chosen by retirees above the basic plan offered by the Company. Total premiums 
for group life insurance were $2.2 million, and $2.1 million in FY 2013 and FY 2012, respectively 
which included $1.7 million and $1.6 million for retirees. Retirees contributed $0.1 million towards 
their life insurance in both FY 2013 and FY 2012. 

(b) Annual Postemployment Benefit Cost, Contributions Required, and Contributions Made 

The amount paid by the Company for retiree benefits in FY 2013 was $42.2 million, consisting of 
$22.2 million of healthcare expenses, $1.5 million of life insurance expenses, and $18.5 million 
contributed to the OPEB trust. In FY 2012, the Company paid $44.5 million, consisting of 
$24.5 million of healthcare expenses, $1.5 million of life insurance expenses, and $18.5 million 
contributed to the OPEB trust. The difference between the AOC and the Company’s contributions 
resulted in a decrease in the OPEB obligation of $2.0 million and $1.6 million in FY 2013 and 
FY 2012, respectively, which was recorded to other liabilities and expensed. 

Funded Status 

The actuarial accrued liability for benefits at August 31, 2013 and 2012 was $436.5 million and 
$444.0 million, respectively. The ratio of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability to the covered 
payroll was 340.3% as of August 31, 2013 and 381.1% as of August 31, 2012. 

Historical trend information reflecting funding progress and contributions made by the Company is 
presented in the Schedule of Other Postemployment Benefits Funding Progress (Required 
Supplementary Information). 

Assumptions 

The valuation was prepared utilizing certain assumptions, including the following: 

• Economic assumptions – the discount rate and healthcare cost trend rates 

• Discount rate – The report utilized a 8.0% discount rate for purposes of developing the liabilities 
and ARC on the Plan for FY 2013. This rate is based on the expected return of the investments 
of the OPEB Trust. 

• Healthcare cost trend rates: 
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Healthcare cost trend rates

Medical Medical
Year (pre-65) (post-65) Prescription Dental

1 10.0% 8.0% 8.0% 4.5%
2 9.0 7.0 7.0 4.5
3 8.0 6.0 6.0 4.5
4 7.0 5.0 5.0 4.5
5 6.5 4.5 4.5 4.5
6 6.0 4.5 4.5 4.5
7 5.5 4.5 4.5 4.5
8 5.0 4.5 4.5 4.5
9 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5

10 and beyond 4.5 4.5 4.5 4.5
 

• Benefit assumptions – the initial per capita cost rates for medical coverage, and the face 
amount of Company-paid life insurance 

• Demographic assumptions – including the probabilities of retiring, dying, terminating (without 
a benefit), becoming disabled, recovery from disability, election (participation rates), and 
coverage levels 

The following table shows the components of the Company’s annual OPEB cost for FY 2013 and 
FY 2012, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and the Company’s net OPEB obligation 
(thousands of U.S. dollars): 

2013 2012

Annual required contribution $ 41,216   47,071   
Interest on net OPEB obligation 8,885   8,756   
Adjustment to the annual required contribution (9,866)  (9,722)  

Annual OPEB cost 40,235   46,105   

Contributions made (42,242)  (44,486)  
Net OPEB obligation as of prior year 111,067   109,448   
Net OPEB obligation as of August 31 $ 109,060   111,067   

 

The difference between the AOC and benefit payments made is recorded as other postemployment 
benefits expense on the statement of revenues and expenses. Contributions made are allocated to 
operating expense line items along with salaries and other employee benefit costs. 
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The Company’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and 
the net OPEB obligation for FY 2013 and the two preceding fiscal years were as follows (thousands 
of U.S. dollars): 

Percentage of
Annual annual OPEB
OPEB cost Net OPEB

cost contributed obligation

Fiscal year ended August 31:
2013 $ 40,235    105.00% $ 109,060   
2012 46,105    96.50 111,067   
2011 45,691    91.30 109,448   

 

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as 
understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the 
time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and 
plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are 
designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial 
value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. 

(c) Other Coverage Information 

Effective September 1, 2011, PGW self-insured the healthcare for active employees and retirees 
under the age of 65. Retirees over the age of 65 are insured on an experience rated basis. Prior to 
September 1, 2011, the Company had entered into several one-year contracts to provide healthcare 
for both active and retired employees that are experience rated, and premiums are adjusted annually. 
In addition, at August 31, 2013, the Company has in place $189.8 million of group life insurance 
coverage for both active and retired employees, which is retrospectively rated on a monthly basis. 

(12) Pollution Remediation 

The pollution remediation obligations at August 31, 2013 and 2012 were $30.8 million and $30.3 million 
respectively, which reflect the impact of GASB Statement No. 49, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Pollution Remediation Obligations. 

(13) Risk Management 

The Company is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of 
assets, errors and omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disasters. While self-insured for many risks, 
the Company purchases insurance coverage where appropriate. The Company’s real and personal property 
is insured against the risk of loss or damage in the amount of $250.0 million, subject to a $0.5 million per 
accident deductible at the Richmond and Passyunk Plants and a $0.1 million per accident deductible at all 
other locations. There are separate sub limits for flood and earth movement at select locations. The 
Company’s Property Insurance includes coverage for damage incurred from a terrorist attack. In addition, 
the Company maintains Blanket Crime, which is a form of Property Insurance. 
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The Company maintained $210.0 million in liability (including terrorism) coverage, insuring against the 
risk of damage to property or injury to the public with a per occurrence self-insured retention of 
$1.0 million. 

The Company maintains statutory limits for Workers’ Compensation (including terrorism) with a 
$0.5 million per occurrence self-insured retention. 

The Company maintains a $30.0 million Public Officials Liability (Directors and Officers Liability) policy 
with a $0.5 million retention as well as a $60.0 million Fiduciary Liability policy with a $0.2 million 
self-insured retention. 

The Company has evaluated all open claims as of August 31, 2013 and has appropriately accrued for these 
claims on the balance sheet. 

Claims and settlement activity for occurrences excluded under the provisions of insurance policies for 
injuries and damages are as follows (thousands of U.S. dollars): 

Current year Current
Beginning of claims and Claims End of year liability
year reserve adjustments settled reserve amount

Fiscal year ended August 31:
2013 $ 11,102    2,616    (3,307)   10,411    4,925   
2012 10,697    3,725    (3,320)   11,102    7,664   
2011 9,866    4,299    (3,468)   10,697    4,141   
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(14) Commitments and Contingencies 

Commitments for major construction and maintenance contracts were approximately $21.6 million and 
$10.7 million, as of August 31, 2013 and August 31, 2012, respectively. 

The Company is committed under various noncancelable operating lease agreements to pay minimum 
annual rentals as follows (thousands of U.S. dollars): 

Fiscal year ending August 31:
2014 $ 489   
2015 68   
2016 49   

 

Rent expense for the fiscal years ended August 31, 2013 and 2012 amounted to $1.4 million and 
$1.3 million, respectively. 

The Company, in the normal course of conducting business, has entered into long-term contracts for the 
supply of natural gas, firm transportation, and long-term firm gas storage service. The Company’s 
cumulative obligations for demand charges for all of these services are approximately $5.5 million, per 
month. 

The Company has entered into seasonal contracts with suppliers providing the Company the ability to fix 
the price of the purchase of natural gas during the period from November 1, 2013 through March 31, 2014. 

The Company’s amended FY 2014 Capital Budget was approved by City Council in the amount of 
$102.9 million. Within this approval, funding was provided to continue the implementation of an 18 mile 
Cast Iron Main Replacement Program. Main replacement cost for this program in FY 2014 is expected to 
be $21.7 million. The total six-year cost of the Cast Iron Main Program is forecasted to be $137.4 million. 
In addition to this program, the FY 2014 Capital Budget includes funding for an incremental Cast Iron 
Main Replacement Program for which PGW will request recovery through a Distribution System 
Improvement Charge (DSIC). This incremental program in FY 2014 is expected to cost $18.2 million. The 
total six-year cost of this incremental program is forecasted to be $128.2 million. The FY 2014 Capital 
Budget also includes $2.1 million for the purchase of replacement Automatic Meter Reading (AMR) units. 
The total six-year cost of this program to replace AMR units is approximately $13.3 million. 

(15) Subsequent Events 

The Company has evaluated events and transactions that occurred between August 31, 2013 and 
December 23, 2013, which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued, for possible 
disclosure and recognition in the financial statements and noted the following: 

In October 2013, an Ordinance was introduced in City Council which extended the expiration date of the 
authority of the City to issue Gas Works Revenue Notes in a principal amount that, together with interest, 
may not exceed $150.0 million outstanding at any one time. The Ordinance was passed by City Council on 
November 21, 2013 and was signed by the Mayor on December 4, 2013. The expiration date of this 
Ordinance is December 4, 2018. 



 

 58 

In October 2013, an Ordinance was introduced in City Council which authorizes the City to sell Gas 
Works Revenue Capital Project Commercial Paper Notes in an aggregate principal amount of up to 
$120.0 million at any one time outstanding to pay the costs related to any or all of the purposes set 
forth in the Ordinance. This includes providing funds for any or all of the following purposes: (a) the 
capital projects included in the capital program of PGW, which may include, without limitation, (i) 
the acquisition of land or rights therein; (ii) the acquisition, construction or improvement of 
buildings, structures and facilities together with their related furnishings, equipment, machinery and 
apparatus; (iii) the acquisition, construction or replacement of pipes and pipe lines; and (iv) the 
acquisition or replacement of property of a capital nature for use in the operation, maintenance and 
administration of the Gas Works system of the City; (b) the provision of interest on the Notes during 
construction of the capital projects; (c) paying the costs of issuing the Notes; and (d) paying any 
other Project Costs (as defined in the First Class Revenue Bond Act of October 18, 1972, Act No. 
234). The Ordinance was passed by City Council on November 21, 2013 and was signed by the 
Mayor on December 4, 2013. This Ordinance does not expire. 
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Schedule of Pension Funding Progress

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

(b)
(a) Actuarial (b)-(a) UAAL

Actuarial Actuarial accrued Unfunded (a/b) as a percent
valuation value of liability AAL Funded Covered of covered

date assets (AAL) (UAAL) ratio payroll payroll

September 1, 2012* 437,780    585,632    147,852    74.8% 106,000    139.5%
September 1, 2011** 421,949    572,190    150,241    73.7 106,308    141.3
September 1, 2010*** 381,975    533,630    151,655    71.6 106,125    142.9
September 1, 2009+ 355,499    519,773    164,274    68.4 106,003    155.0
September 1, 2008++ 430,390    495,155    64,765    86.9 107,918    60.0
September 1, 2007+++ 416,183    482,380    66,197    86.3 105,596    62.7

* The required supplementary information is based on an actuarial valuation of the pension fund for the plan year September 1,
2011 through August 31, 2012, updated for contributions and additional accrued benefits in the subsequent fiscal year.

** The required supplementary information is based on an actuarial valuation of the pension fund for the plan year September 1,
2011 through August 31, 2012.

*** The required supplementary information is based on an actuarial valuation of the pension fund for the plan year September 1,
2009 through August 31, 2010, updated for contributions and additional accrued benefits in the subsequent fiscal year.

+ The required supplementary information is based on an actuarial valuation of the pension fund for the plan year September 1,
2009 through August 31, 2010.

++ The required supplementary information is based on an actuarial valuation of the pension fund for the plan year September 1,
2007 through August 31, 2008, updated for contributions and additional accrued benefits in the subsequent fiscal year.

+++ The required supplementary information is based on an actuarial valuation of the pension fund for the plan year September 1,
2007 through August 31, 2008.

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)

Schedule of Other Postemployment Benefits Funding Progress

(Thousands of U.S. dollars)

(b)
(a) Actuarial (b)-(a) UAAL

Actuarial Actuarial accrued Unfunded (a/b) as a percent
valuation value of liability AAL Funded Covered of covered

date assets (AAL) (UAAL) ratio payroll payroll

August 31, 2013* 61,796    436,527    374,731    14.2% 110,120    340.3%
August 31, 2012** 38,860    443,982    405,122    8.8 106,308    381.1
August 31, 2011*** 17,886    485,722    467,836    3.7 106,125    440.8

* The required supplementary information is based on an actuarial valuation of the OPEB fund for the plan year September 1,
2012 through August 31, 2013.

** The required supplementary information is based on an actuarial valuation of the OPEB fund for the plan year September 1,
2011 through August 31, 2012.

*** The required supplementary information is based on an actuarial valuation of the OPEB fund for the plan year September 1,
2010 through August 31, 2011.

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.


